


Access Bank Ghana is one of the leading banks in Ghana with consistent 
growth in all key performance indicators over the past 3 years. We are 
currently the most capitalized bank in terms of paid-up capital. As a 
subsidiary of Access Bank Plc, an emerging leader in Africa, we are 
leveraging the Banks expertise in Trade Finance, Treasury and Technology 
driven banking solutions to rank amongst the top 5 in Ghana within the 
next few years.                                                   
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Ghana

Greater Accra 
Region

Ashanti Region Western Region Northern Region

Locations & Offices  
Overview

Services offered

 

Access Savings Account
Access Current Account
Access IPSA Account
Access Premier Account
Early Savers Account
 Solo Account
Mpower Salary Account
Mpower Biz Account
 Call Deposits 
Fixed Deposits
Commercial Papers 
Treasury Bills and Notes
Foreign Currency Sales and Trading 
Repurchase Agreements (Repos)
Letters of Credit 
Bills for Collection
Guarantees 
Open Account
Advance Payment 
Advisory services 
Cash Pick-ups
Teller In-Plants 
Financial Advisory Services
Utility Bills Payment - Electricity, 
Water & DSTV 
 Western Union Money Transfer
Money gram
 Asset Finance 
Working Capital
 Overdrafts
Term Loans 
Bonds and Guarantees 
Access On-line
Access Alert
 Access ATM
 VISA Debit  Card
 VISA Credit Card 

Number of branches

Number of branches Number of branches Number of branches Number of branches

Employees

Employees Employees Employees Employees

Customer accounts

Customer accounts Customer accounts Customer accounts Customer accounts

39

175,061

417

26 5

10046

30 21 10343

10748 10276139733

4 1

Brong-Ahafo
Region

Number of branches

Employees

Customer accounts

1

Central Region

Number of branches

Employees

Customer accounts

Eastern Region

Number of branches

Employees

Customer accounts

We are currently one of the largest banks in Ghana serving 
over 175,061 customers from 39 branches and 43 ATMs. 
These are located in all major commercial centres and 
cities across Ghana.

Overview
Business Review
Governance

Financial Statements
Corporate Directory

1

3

0

1

3

0

ACCRA

ASHANTI 
REGION

WESTERN
REGION

NORTHERN
REGION

BRONG-AHAFO
REGION

CENTRAL
REGION

EASTERN
REGION

(Agency)(Agency)

4258

7

Annual Report and Accounts 2011
Access Bank (Ghana) Limited 2



International Network 

The Gambia

United Kingdom

Sierra Leone

Cote d’ Ivoire

Ghana

Nigeria

DR Congo

Zambia

Burundi

Rwanda

Annual Report and Accounts 2011
Access Bank (Ghana) Limited 3



—  The Bank recorded
profit before tax of GHS12.97
million in the financial
year ended December 31,
2011, representing an 8%
increase over the previous
year.
2011 saw gross earnings
from institutional and 
commercial banking 
segments more than 
double
The Bank’s Treasury
business contributed
strongly to bottom line
profits.

—

—

Profit before taxGross earnings

Profit after taxShareholders’ funds

Loans and advancesCustomer deposits

Treasury billsTotal assets

GHS12.97m 

GHS8.4m 

GHS77m 

GHS98.3m 

GHS165.3m

GHS280m GHS148.9m 

GHS37.7m
+8%+36%

+1.6%+13.4%

+323%+80%

+-2.6%+42.3%

(2010:GHS12m) 2010: GHS27.7m) 

(2010: GHS8.3m)(2010: GHS86.7m) 

(2010: GHS18.2)(2010: GHS91.8m) 

(2010:GHS152.97m)(2010: GHS196.8)

Performance Highlights

2011 at a glance 2011 Performance highlights
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Chairman’s Statement
Welcome

I will be presenting to you a brief review of the major developments that have 

taken place in our local markets and in the wider global economy in which our 

Bank operates, as well as providing you with a summary of the Bank’s 

performance for the financial year ended 31st December 2011.

GLOBAL ENVIRONMENT 

The year 2011 was a year of continuous recovery from the global economic 

meltdown of 2007-2009, with global GDP growth of 3.5%. The emerging 

markets initially grew strongly while growth in advanced markets remained 

sluggish.  Growth registered in emerging economies was led by China and 

India. Most advanced nations especially in the European block also started 

recovering thanks to efforts by the European Central Bank to keep credit 

flowing. 

Global growth was projected to grow at 3.5 percent in 2012 with significant 

contribution from emerging economies, even though they were expected to 

decline by 0.7 percentage points on average, going from 6.3 percent growth 

in 2011 to 5.6 percent in 2012. Similarly, growth in the advanced economies 

growth was expected to slow down from an already meager 1.6 percent in 

2011 to 1.3 percent in 2012.

The greatest challenge for the global economy in this slow growth 

environment is to raise productivity without losing job opportunities for the 

millions who are looking for reasonably paid jobs to support their living 

standards. 

DOMESTIC ENVIRONMENT

Ghana in 2011 recorded highs in several aspects of the macro economy. 

Revised estimates of the GDP for 2011 showed a growth of 14.4% as 

compared to 5.9% in 2010. The growth in the past year was driven mainly by 

the massive investment in the oil sector. This growth Inflation remained at 

single digits throughout the year with year-end inflation of 8.6%. 

The cedi depreciated against major international currencies; it depreciated 

4.9% against the US dollar in 2011 compared to 3.1% in 2010. Our major 

exports, cocoa and gold, enjoyed favourable world market prices. This, 

coupled with oil production boosted domestic production. 

THE INDUSTRY

The Ghanaian banking industry recorded a steady growth in 2011. The 

monetary policy rate remained stable at 13.5%. This enabled more industries 

to borrow, thus introducing a new set of borrowing customers to the banking 

sector and increasing earnings of banks. The Gross International Reserves of 

the Bank of Ghana improved to US$5.4billion in 2011 from US$4.7 billion in 

2010. The following highlights were also captured under the year in review:

• An increase in Total Industry Operating Assets by 26.8% to GH¢22.6 billion in 

2011 from GH¢17.4 billion in 2010. 

• An increase in deposits by 35.3% to GH¢16 billion in 2011 from  GH¢11.8 

billion in 2010. 

• Non-Performing loan ratio declined to 14.2% in 2011 from 16.1% in 2010.

• In terms of earnings, all the indicators (Return on Equity, Return  on Assets 

and Return on Earnings Assets) improved in 2011 to 2010 levels.

• Capital Adequacy Ratio (CAR) declined to 17.4% in 2011 from 19.1% in 2010, 

well above the 10% statutory threshold.

GROWTH OPPORTUNITIES AND EXPANSION

Your Bank positioned itself for increased growth early in the year with an 

entry into Kumasi, the 2nd largest city with significant contribution to the 

trade hub in Ghana. The seemingly slow expansion was propelled with the 

business combination of our parent Bank, Access Bank Plc, with and 

Intercontinental Bank Plc. Our Bank’s strategic objective is to rank amongst 

the top 5 banks in Ghana and the merger presented the ideal growth 

opportunities to expand our footprint through an inorganic growth strategy.

The Board of Directors has worked closely with Management to oversee this 

merger process in line with regulatory standards and international best practice. 

Today our Bank is one of the most capitalized in the industry, in terms of paid-up 

capital, giving us the cushion on which our aggressive growth strategy for the 

subsequent years will be built and implemented. 

Distinguished shareholders, it is with great 
pleasure that I welcome you to the 4th 
Annual General Meeting of our Bank. The 
year 2011 has been a page turner in the 
history of the Bank as a result of our 
business combination with Intercontinental 
Bank Ghana (“IBG”), which has created one 
of the leading banks in Ghana today. In my 
maiden statement to you as Chairman for 
the newly combined entity, I am equally 
delighted to report another successful year 
of profit and growth.  

Mr. Herbert Wigwe 
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Chairman’s Statement

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE

In 2011, the Bank recorded profit before tax of GHS13 million in the financial year 

ended December 31, 2011, representing a 6%increase over the previous year. 

Even though marginal, the performance was underpinned by prudent 

management of resources and a cautious approach to risk taking, reducing our 

non-performing loan portfolio from 18.2% to 5.4%. Total deposits also increased 

to GHS165 million representing an 80% growth over the previous year, an 

indication of gradual acceptance in the Ghanaian market.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Access Bank remains committed to corporate governance structures that will 

ensure business continuity with sound and sustainable business practices. Your 

Board of Directors has taken the initiative to adopt, in certain areas, governance 

standards that are higher than required by local code and regulatory 

requirements. In 2011, the Bank appointed a Chief Risk Officer while also ensuring 

that key positions in enterprise risk framework were filled. We have established a 

system that ensures an integrated view of risk and correlation/diversification 

benefits.

CONCLUSION

We extend our sincere appreciation to our shareholders, customers, 

employees and other stakeholders for their diligence and continued support 

during this transformational year. We also welcome our new shareholders and 

look forward to an exciting partnership to successful years ahead as we work 

assiduously to improve the Bank’s fortunes.

It is my firm resolve, that your Bank will be the most preferred in the Ghanaian 

banking industry, ranking amongst the top 5 within the next few years 

through sustainable banking practices for continued growth and strong 

performance.

God Bless. 

“Our Bank’s consistent performance 
across key indicators has led to 
sustainable growth in the last 3 years”

Herbert Wigwe 
Chairman, Board Of Directors
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MD’s Review

Mr. Dolapo Ogundimu 

Year 2011
Economy

During the period under review Ghana’s economic fundamentals remained 

strong with broad-based economic growth driven by real sector performance 

and increased credit to the private sector. The banking sector was robust and 

there was buoyant performance on the Ghana Stock Exchange.

Year-end inflation stood at 8.6%, lower than the projected target of 9% and 

remained within single digits throughout 2011. Interest rates generally 

drifted downwards in 2011, with significant decline of the 91-day Treasury bill 

rate to 10.3% from 12.3%.  The cedi also depreciated by 4.9% against the US 

dollar in 2011, compared to a 3.1% in 2010. Early signs in 2012 indicate 

that Treasury bill rates are moving upwards and the cedi currently is 

depreciating much faster against its major trading currencies. 

Industry

The banking industry continued to be highly competitive. The industry 

recorded a steady growth in assets and profitability in 2011. The growth in 

assets was mainly funded by deposits which grew by 35.3 per cent on a 

year-on-year basis. Bank of Ghana’s Policy rate currently stands at 14.5%. The 

Monetary Policy Committee’s decision to increase the policy rate from 13.5% 

to 14.5% was informed by upside risks to the prevailing macro-economic 

stability including fiscal pressures and the unusual volatility in the foreign 

exchange market. 

The Bank

The change of control process for the business combination between Access 

and “IBG” began in October 2011. The process of integrating systems, people 

and technology was completed in the 1st quarter of 2012 following the 

necessary regulatory and shareholder approvals. The merger places Access 

Bank as the most capitalised in terms of paid-up-capital and amongst the top 

7 banks in the country by Total Assets. 

Today, we are leveraging our footprint in over 39 branch locations to provide 

technology driven banking solutions to our customers in most parts of 

Ghana.

Beyond 2011
We remain confident that our Bank is on its way to becoming one of the most 

preferred banks in Ghana, ranking amongst the top 5 universal banks in the 

industry. 

The possibilities for the Ghanaian economy seem endless with the 

production of oil, the favourable international prices for gold and cocoa, and 

the likelihood of gas production in 2012. Several untapped markets will 

continue to be discovered. Consumer banking is also expected to grow as the 

revamping of public sector salary and the implementation of several 

development projects has created excess liquidity in the economy. 

As a Bank, we will continue to play a more active role in the growth of the 

economy by focusing on major growth sectors which aligns to our 

competencies.  Our corporate banking team will target blue chip corporate 

and multilateral institutions with specific emphasis on key sectors of the 

Ghanaian economy. We will be interested in sectors such as mining and allied 

services; commerce; transportation; agriculture; telecommunications; energy 

and power; real estate; manufacturing etc.

We are again streamlining our operations to ensure that the retail banking 

segment of the Bank fulfils the financial service needs of individuals and 

Small-and-Medium Enterprises (SMEs) by offering savings, investment, and 

lending products. 

One of our major strength as a bank is in the area of International Trade 

Operations where our crop of seasoned professionals provide cutting edge 

services for our diverse clientele spanning International Trade Finance, 

Treasury Management, and International Currency Trading. The Bank enjoys 

the strong support of a network of leading international banks which provide 

correspondent banking services.Our Treasury and Global Trade teams will 

continue to grow these sectors by introducing new and innovative products. 

The year 2011 was a landmark year for renewed growth and expansion, and I 

would especially like to thank all our employees who worked tirelessly during 

the integration process and continue to demonstrate their commitment to 

excellence. I also extend on behalf of my colleagues, our appreciation to 

customers, shareholders, regulators and other stakeholders whose support 

and direction has remained invaluable.

We look forward to exciting and more rewarding years ahead

Dear Stakeholder,
I am pleased to report that our corporate 
ambition of becoming one of the elite 
banks in Ghana received impetus through 
the business combination with 
Intercontinental Bank Ghana (“IBG”). More 
importantly, our Bank consolidated its 
moderate gains from the past years with 
our 2011 financial performance, ensuring a 
renewed growth trajectory and sustainable 
business practices

Dolapo Ogundimu
Managing Director
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Just as we value our customers and 
staff, we also believe in creating value 
for our local communities. We accept 
that we have a role to play in making 
contributions to the economy and to 
society. The natural environment, too, 
deserves our wholehearted support. 
Our commitment to deliver long-term 
benefits to our host communities 
and to the environment confirms our 
determination to put sustainable banking 
at the heart of all our operations.

Follow my Access Community on  & 
http://www.facebook.com/myaccess
http://www.twitter.com/myaccessbank

www.accessbankplc.com/gh

A Passion For Excellence

SUSTAINABLE BANKING FOR A SUSTAINABLE FUTURE





Access Bank Ghana’s business model is 
structured  along four major strategic 
business segments.

Business Segment Review
At A Glance

Institutional 
Banking

Our IBG division is structured along 
strategic units to ensure adequate 
support for key economic sectors.
Multinationals
Telecoms
Oil & Gas
Mining & Construction
Manufacturing
Public Sector
Cocoa and Export
Airlines & Hospitality

Target markets
Individuals
Trading
Manufacturing
Hospitality
Schools/Educational 
Institutions
HNI/UHNI
Real Estate
Bureau de Change
Security & Armory
Asset Management
Information Technology
Transportation
Partnerships/Professional

Contribution to Total Profit

Contribution to Total Profit

The Institutional Banking division offers a full
range of services to multinationals, large domestic
corporates and other institutional clients.
• We strive to provide premium relationship
management to top tier corporate clients,
while serving as an anchor to the value chain
model of the Bank.
• We also deliver corporate and structured
financial services to leading banks, insurance
companies as well as
investment and asset management firms.
• Our focus is to add value by building long term
relationships with our clients through a deep
understanding of their businesses and the
environment in which they operate,

•  
 

•  

•  

The Commercial Banking division focuses on serving
all non-institutional clients within the value chain of
the Bank’s large corporate customers.
• This is achieved through the distribution of both
commercial and retail offerings as well as other
structured local and foreign organisations with
turnover in excess of GHS 5million
• The division has chosen the value chain model as
its preferred approach to running the commercial
banking business at this time.
• Significant successes have been recorded with
the application of this strategy, showing the huge
potential for growth in our business

•   

•   

•   

Commercial 
Banking

21%

6%

Institutional Banking: 

GHS 2,560m+21%

+6%
Commercial Banking: 

GHS 776m

+48%
Financial Institutions: 

GHS 5,565m

-5%
Retail Banking:  

GHS 628m

Contribution to Total Profit

Annual Report and Accounts 2011
Access Bank (Ghana) Limited 10

Overview
Business Review
Governance

Financial Statements
Corporate Directory



-5%

Retail Banking Target
Individuals
Students
Children below 18yrs
Salaried workers
Small and medium scale 
enterprises 
Business owners
Professionals
Traders

Target

Banks & other Financial 
Institutions
Insurance companies
Mining & allied services firms
Oil & Gas firms
NGOs
Hotels
Importers & exporters

 

 

Contribution to Total Profit

Contribution to Total Profit

Our Financial Institution unit is at the forefront of fixed
income and foreign exchange trading in Ghana,
while our global financial markets group continues
to build core competence in structured finance
and advisory transactions.

Our investment arm of the division consistently 
supported business growth activities with brisk 
business on the forex mobiilsation desk and in the 
FX trading market.

During the period under review, we were significant
Contributors to the Banks bottom line, accounting for 
over 46% of profits.

Our Asset and Liability Management team also played 
critical roles in managing liquidity positions to achieve 
optimal profitability.

•

  

•

•

  

The Products & Retail Banking division currently
serves over 175,000 customer accounts providing
financial products and services to individuals and
small businesses in the value-chain of the Bank’s
corporate clients. The division received a major boost 
during the last quarter with the business combination
 with Intercontinental Bank Ghana which grew our 
footprint to an  additional 27 new locations, making us 
one of the most largest retail banks in the country.

Our products and services range from standard
to specialized savings, current and investment
accounts.

Others include credit products, including salary 
loans, advances, asset finance, small
business loans and credit cards.

  

•

  

•
 

Financial 
Institutions

46%

Energy:

Manufacturing:

Trade:

GHS 20,572m

GHS 44,036m

GHS 49,920m

GHS 7,920m
Public Sector: 

Investment in Key Sectors

Investment in Key Sectors
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Our Products & Services

Products and services

The Bank provides universal banking services and customized financial solutions 
for both personal and business banking needs. We have a comprehensive range 
of products with an easy to understand pricing policy which guarantees 
convenient and world class banking services across our network in Ghana. 

RETAIL PRODUCTS
Our retail products offer simple and flexible ways of managing your 
day to day funds while earning attractive interest with great investment 
opportunities. 

1.   Access Savings Account

2.   Access Current Account

3.   Access IPSA Account

4.   Access Premier Account

5.   Early Savers Account

6.   Solo Account

7.   Mpower Salary Account

8.   Mpower Biz Account

Our investment products provide attractive returns on investments in 
the low risk money market which guarantees the safety of customers
’ funds.

1.   Call Deposits 

2.   Fixed Deposits

3.   Commercial Papers 

4.   Treasury Bills and Notes

5.   Foreign Currency Sales and Trading 

6.   Repurchase Agreements (Repos)

TRADE FINANCE PRODUCTS 
We possess the experience, resource and expertise in international trade
 and commodity financing, thus we are well positioned to become 
a reliable partner for businesses in Ghana. 

1.   Letters of Credit 

2.   Bills for Collection

3.   Guarantees 

4.   Open Account

5.   Advance Payment 

6.   Advisory services 

TREASURY AND INVESTMENT PRODUCTS

PAYMENTS AND COLLECTIONS
We facilitate the management of payments and receivables of our corporate 
and commercial customers by offering tailor made solutions to meet 
their needs. 

1.   Cash Pick-ups

2.   Teller In-Plants 

3.   Financial Advisory Services

4.   Utility Bills Payment - Electricity, Water & DSTV 

5.   Western Union Money Transfer

6.   Money gram 

LENDNG SERVICES
We offer our SME and corporate customers a wide range of working capital 
financing options to enable them meet their short and long term 
financial needs. 

1.   Asset Finance 

2.   Working Capital

3.   Overdrafts

4.   Term Loans 

5.   Bonds and Guarantees 

E-BANKING PRODUCTS
Our electronic banking platform enables our customers to track their cash
 flow 24/7 and on-line in real time basis. 

1.   Access On-line

2.   Access Alert

3.   Access ATM

4.   VISA Debit  Card

5.   VISA Credit Card
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IT Services

Access Bank has deployed technology driven solutions to support its wide 
geographical network across major cities and in some of the most distant 
locations in the country. With our robust technology we’ve been able 
to showcase our expertise in Trade Finance, Treasury and 
Cash Management services.

The Information Technology Department (IT) plays a central role in 

supporting the Banks corporate ambition of becoming a reference point for 

service delivery in the banking industry. We continue to define our IT 

capabilities by global standards and are able to provide world class service 

management through our 7.2 Flexcube Banking Application.

In 2011, the following automation and deployments were achieved:

• A web based helpdesk system accessible to all users was setup and used to 

manage user issues. This improved Turn Around Time (TAT) for resolving   

  customer complaints.

•The Internet Banking suite was redesigned to allow secure third party 

connections.  This enabled Account to Account and third party transfers   

  within by customers of the bank.

• Automation of welcome messages for new customers of the Bank. The  

message includes a welcome note and the account number of the individual.

• Automation of birthday alerts for customers.  

• Automation of collections platform to receive water bills payment. These 

solutions are integrated into our customer’s systems to provide efficient   

 and cost effective bulk payments, collections and reporting capabilities, 

helping customers integrate their payments and collections value chain.

• Implementation of a comprehensive e-Banking and Cards (Visa, Ezwich) 

platform to enable customers have access to the bank 24hrs.

• Implementation of Disaster Recovery Tests to strengthen the Bank’s IT 

security Policy and ensure backup arrangement is good enough to support    

the business. 

In the last quarter of 2011, the IT department began the system integration 

processes for the Access and Intercontinental Bank merger. The key activity in 

this process was to combine the platforms of both Banks while upgrading it 

to meet acceptable standards. The system integration process was finalized 

in March 2012, paving the way for improved and enhanced service delivery 

across all the Banks branches.

The Bank continues to develop its enterprise architecture and strategy for IT 

enabled business transformation to enable sustainable business growth for 

2012 and into the future. 
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Our People & Culture

As a merit driven organisation, individual performance at Access Bank 
remains critical to the achievement of our corporate objectives. Our 
employees are constantly motivated to excel in all aspects of our banking 
business through our human resource management practices.  The versatility 
in our approach ensures job satisfaction and a progressive career 
development for each employee.

Recruitment 
Recruitment at Access Bank is initiated across two levels; entry level positions 
and the experienced hire level. In 2009, the Bank began a novel training 
programme to absorb student graduates from the country’s top universities 
and to develop a pipeline of talented professionals for the banking industry. 
So far, the programme has trained over 35 graduates at the Access Bank 
School of Banking Excellence in Lagos, which has acquired an enviable 
reputation as a learning centre of excellence. In 2011, the career journey of 12 
graduates began with their four months’ intensive training at the school.  
Their training is central in building a sustainable banking franchise in the 
Ghanaian industry.   
Recruitment at the experienced hire level is achieved by scouting for 
ambitious, self motivated individuals who are ready to excel in building a 
respected organisation. These individuals are people who also possess 
attributes relevant to the core values of the Bank.

Training
Training and career development at Access Bank is guided by the 
development and building of staff capacity to achieve excellence. As a result, 
successful hires were made to undergo training in core banking areas. All staff 
of the bank received training locally and internationally in the period under 
review. 

• Banking College - Employees working in the core banking areas received over 
700 hours in training on a variety of relevant course models at the Ghana 
Banking College. 

• Classroom training - All Account Officers and Relationship Managers of the 
Bank, numbering about 37, were sent to the Group Head Office in Lagos for 
refresher training on rotational basis. 

• Specialist training - Specialist training was also conducted for officers of the 
Bank that required enhanced training in Leadership, Risk Management and 
Corporate Governance to meet current market needs.

Productivity 
Performance Management: In our bid to provide a rewarding work 
environment, the bank has adopted a performance management system that 
reflects the balance scorecard approach; our performance management 
system is fair, transparent and rewards excellence. The system forms the basis 
for assessing staff performance against the overall business objectives and 
strategies. With a high performance driven environment, the bank is able to 
achieve high staff productivity levels at all times. 

Rewards: High performing employees at Access Bank are consistently 
rewarded and motivated to pursue greater challenges. Our staff productivity 
levels continue to remain as one of the highest in the industry during the 
period. During the year, employees were rewarded for their exceptional 
contribution to the Bank’s growth in four major categories; Brand 
Ambassador of the Year, Employee of the Year, Customer Service Person of 
the Year and Teller of the Year. Winners of these categories also participated in 
the Group wide employee awards at the maiden edition of the Access Bank 
CEO Awards.

Staff Personal Development Plan:
We encourage employees to articulate their career goals in a structured 
approach by adopting the Staff Personal Development Plan (SPDP). Under 
the SPDP, employees enjoy job satisfaction since they have a better 
understanding of their career goals, job roles and expectations. It also 
encourages mentorship between supervisors and team members on key 
areas of learning and development including how these needs will be 
supported.

Working with others:
Access Bank has created a non-discriminatory work environment through 
policy development. In October 2011, the Bank partnered with the Global 
Business Coalition Against AIDS (GBCA) to train over 25 employees as peer 
educators who assisted in staff sensitization on the triple pandemic of 
HIV/AIDS, Tuberculosis and Malaria in the last quarter of the year.  

The Bank also continued its sponsorship with leading universities and 
associations such as AISEC. Through the AISEC partnership five foreign 
students from Europe and the Americas were seconded to Access Bank. The 
students worked as interns for a one month period in various capacities at 
the Bank.

We also launched our internship/partnership programs with the nation’s top 
universities and some selected private universities. Through this program the 
bank has contributed to developing a pipeline of talent for the industry.

The business combination between Access and Intercontinental Bank has 
assembled together one of the finest pool of professionals in the industry. 
Our staff strength has soared from 98 to over 455 employees. This can only 
mean good for us as we stem our resources to become the employer of 
choice in Ghana by attract and retaining the best talent in the Ghanaian 
banking industry.

We are a fast paced, result driven and innovative organization boldly setting 
standards of excellence in the Ghanaian Banking sector and beyond.
Our corporate philosophy is at the heart of everything we do. We recruit and 
develop the industry’s most skilled and talented individuals; and create an 
inclusive work environment that accommodates individual employee needs.

Employee of the Year Award
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SUSTAINABLE BANKING FOR A SUSTAINABLE FUTURE

A Passion For Excellence

ONE BANK. ONE PRIORITY: YOU.
With the seamless integration of the operations of Intercontinental Bank into those of 
Access Bank you now have a platform that gives wider reach. As an enlarged stronger bank 
with scale, we offer all customers the promise of quality products and excellent services. 
Focusing on the needs of our individual customers, we aim to create the most trusted and 
respected name in financial services. We’ve come together, but you come first.

Follow my Access Community
on  & 
http://www.facebook.com/myaccess
http://www.twitter.com/myaccessbank

www.accessbankplc.com/gh





Community Investment 
We believe that the survival and continued prosperity of our business cannot 
be divorced from the prosperity and sustenance of the community in which 
we operate. As such, the Bank actively seeks to improve the affairs of host 
communities by contributing its quota in adding value to the communities, 
enhancing their lives and leaving them better equipped to succeed 
themselves. Our community investment activities are conducted through 
strategic sponsorships and donations; partnerships and employee 
volunteering. 

The scope of our community development initiatives includes education, 
health environment, arts and sports.

Partnerships
With an on-going commitment to impact lives through social interventions 
and programmes that are in line with global trends and development, the 
Bank activated a number of partnerships. Notable projects included the 
partnership with Friends Africa of the Global Fund Africa (Friends Africa) and 
the Global Business Coalition Against AIDS (GBCA) to scale up the prevention 
and treatment of the triple pandemic of AIDS, Tuberculosis and Malaria.

This partnership witnessed the training of over 125 small and medium scale 
enterprises (SMEs) to develop HIV/AIDS, TB and malaria workplace policies 
and programmes. 

Sponsorship and donations
The Bank once again demonstrated its commitment to the development of 
youth education in the country when it jointly sponsored the maiden edition 
of the National Service Stakeholder Conference in Accra. The objective was to 
address critical issues affecting the National Service Scheme (NSS), its funding 
and relevance. The event, which brought together over 300 corporate 
organizations and chief executives was organized by the National Service 
Secretariat, the single largest institution that deploys labour in the country, in 
collaboration with the Ministry of Education. 

In line with Access Bank’s guiding CSR policy on arts & culture, the Bank 
supported a series of musical concerts to commemorate Ghana’s 51s Republic 
Day Celebrations. The programme formed part of the implementation of the 
Cultural Policy of Ghana promulgated in 2004 to accelerate arts for wealth 
creation through public and private partnerships. Hundreds of parents and 
students patronized these events which provided healthy family 
entertainment with traditional instruments including folk music, 
neo-traditional music, jazz and African genre.

At Access Bank, we are committed to creating a work environment where 
people can make a difference both as individuals and as part of a team. 
We recognise that corporate responsibility, sustainability and business 
success belong together. Our approach to corporate social responsibility
(CSR) is therefore versatile, as it integrates responsible business practice 
with community investment programmes.

Corporate Responsibility
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Corporate Responsibility

Employee painting the classrom block at La Wireless Cluster of Schools

2011 SME Workplace Policies Development Workshop held in Accra.Ogundimu 

Most Socially Responsible Bank 2010

Employee Volunteering Programme

The Bank believes that its employees have their own responsibility to 
contribute to societal development and so it supports participation in 
impactful initiatives to address social concerns. Empowered to contribute 
ideas, skills and resources to address social issues, over 80% of employees are 
actively engaged in various impactful community development initiatives in 
the focus areas of education, health and the environment.

Since launching the Employee Volunteering Programme (EVP) in 2010, over 
3,500 lives have been touched and impacted through our employees. 

In year 2011, a group of employees partnered the Sickle Cell Association of 
Ghana (SCAG) to mark the 3rd ‘World Sickle Cell Awareness Day’. The gesture 
saw employees supporting the SCAG in its outreach and training programs 
to sensitize the general public about the disease. 
The collaboration also covered training of 100 selected health workers on 
caring for sickle cell patients. The ‘La Wireless’ cluster of schools at Labadi in 
Accra benefited from skills development and career counseling. The pupils 
were also mentored with the motivational video “Gifted Hands’, which 
narrated the compelling life story of Ben Carson, one of world’s renowned 
neuro-surgeons. 

In recognition of our efforts, the Bank was voted the ‘Most Socially 
Responsible Bank 2010’ at the 10th Ghana Banking Awards held in 
August 2011.

“Voted as the Most Socially 
Responsible Bank in 2010, 
Access Bank Ghana continues 
to demonstrate a sincere and 
consistent commitment to the 
principles of sustainability 
across all its functions”.
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Business Unit
Risk Champions

Risk Management

Introduction
The board of directors and management of the Bank are committed to 
constantly establishing, implementing and sustaining tested practices in risk 
management to match those of leading international banks. The Bank is 
convinced that the long-term sustainability of its franchise depends critically 
on the proper governance and effective management of the business. 

Access Bank operates a centralized risk management department, with 
responsibility to ensure that the risk management processes are 
implemented in compliance with policies approved by the board of directors 
which is detailed in the Enterprise Risk Management (ERM) Framework of the 
Bank.  

However, the evolving nature of risk management practices and the dynamic 
character of the banking industry necessitate regular review of the 
effectiveness of each enterprise risk management component. 

Responsibility 
The risk management department (with the support of the Group Chief Risk 
Officer is responsible for the enforcement of the Bank’s risk policy by 
constantly monitoring risk, with the aim of identifying and quantifying 
significant risk exposures and acting upon such exposures as necessary. 
Access Bank has adopted (with the relevant modifications) the risk 
management framework of its parent company which is based on the 
guidelines of the Basel II Capital Accord: 

Basel II implementation 
Access Bank is committed to the implementation of Basel II in the medium 
term. To this end, a standing steering committee leads the Bank’s Basel II 
effort, with the full support of the management of the Bank and the board of 
directors. 

The Access Bank Group has developed several policies covering the first two 
(2) pillars of the Accord and an implementation plan has been approved by 
the Board of Directors.

Risk culture and appetite
The Bank’s risk management philosophy is that a moderate and guarded risk 
attitude ensures sustainable growth in shareholder value and reputation. The 
Bank believes that enterprise risk management provides the superior 
capabilities to identify and assess the full spectrum of risks and to enable staff 
at all levels to better understand and manage risks. 

Risk management strategy and objectives
The strategy for the management of risk is to empower all our staff actively to 
identify, control, monitor, and regularly report risk issues to management. 

The broad risk management objectives of the Bank are: 
- To identify and manage existing and new risks in a planned and    
   coordinated manner with minimum disruption and cost 
- To protect against unforeseen losses and ensure stability of earnings
- To maximise earnings potential and opportunities 
- To maximise share price and stakeholder protection 
- To enhance credit ratings and stakeholder perception 
- To develop a risk culture that encourages all staff to identify risks and   
   associated opportunities and to respond to them with cost effective    
   actions 

Scope of risks 
The scope of risks that are directly managed by the Bank is as follows: Credit 
risk, Operational risk, Market and Liquidity risk, Legal and Compliance risk, 
Strategic risk, Reputational risk and Capital risk

Board of
Directors

Board Risk
Management

Committee

Asset and
Liability

Committee
(ALCO)

Board  
Committee on 

Human
Resources

Risk
Management

and Compliance
Department

t

)

Board Risk
Audit

Committee

Internal Audit
Division

La ye r 1 

La ye r 2 

La ye r 3 

Board Credit
 

Committee

Managing Director

Managemen
Credit

Committee
(MCC)

Enterprise Risk
Management

Committee
(ERMC)

Risk Management Governance Structure 
Access Bank’s Risk Management Governance Structure is depicted below: 
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Governance
Directors, Officers & Advisors

The Board

1.   Herbert Wigwe          Chairman

2.   Frank Beecham  Director

3.   Isaac Sam  Director

4.   Iyabo Soji- Okusanya  Director

5.   Nkum Adipa               Director

6.   Obeahon Ohiwerei    Director 

7.   Yomi Akapo  Director

8.   Taukeme Koroye  Director

9.   Dolapo Ogundimu Managing Director

SECRETARY  Abla Masoperh

   Access Bank Ghana Limited

   Accra, Ghana

AUDITORS  KPMG

   Chartered Accountants

   13 Yiyiwa Drive

   Abelenkpe

   P.O. Box GP 242

   Accra, Ghana

REGISTERED OFFICE 

   Starlets ’91 Road

   Opposite Accra Sports Stadium

   Osu

   Accra, Ghana

BANKERS   Access Bank Nigeria Plc

   Access Bank, UK

   Bank of Ghana

                                                                Barclays Bank Ghana Limited

   Citi Bank (New York)

MANAGEMENT TEAM

Dolapo Ogundimu – Managing Director

Akwasi Effah-Adu – General Manager

Benjamin Nii Kpani Addy – Assistant General Manager

Chizobam Tony-Nnamah – Senior Manager

Erick Houadjeto – Senior Manager

Fosuhene Acheampong – Senior Manager

Frederick Asante Awuku - Senior Manager

Moses Tetteh Cofie - Senior Manager

Abass Haruna Appiah – Manager 

Angela C. Okugo – Manager

Ann Obeng-Ababio – Manager

Appiah Mensah Twene  – Manager

Joseph Robertson Afful – Manager

Matilda Asante-Asiedu – Manager

Olugbenga Ogundele – Manager
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Directors’ Report

Report of the Directors

The directors in submitting to the shareholders their report and financial 
statements of the Bank and its subsidiary for the year ended 31 December 
2011 report as follows:

Statements of Directors' Responsibilities

The Bank's directors are responsible for the preparation and fair presentation 
of the financial statements in accordance with International Financial 
Reporting standards, and in the manner required by the Companies Code 
1963 (Act 179) and Banking Act, 2004 (Act 673) as amended by the Banking 
Amendment Act, 2007(Act 738) and for such controls as the directors 
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that 
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Access Bank Plc acquired Intercontinental Bank Plc and as a result, Access 
Bank Plc became the ultimate beneficiary majority owner of Intercontinental 
Bank (Ghana) Limited. Access Bank Plc resolved to merge its subsidiary in 
Ghana with Intercontinental Bank (Ghana) Limited.

In accordance with Section 29(c) of the Banking Act, 2004 (Act 673) as 
amended, an amount of GH¢ 4,209,000 (2010: GH¢4,141,000) was transferred 
to the reserve fund from the retained earnings account (income surplus), 
bringing the cumulative balance on the statutory reserve fund to 
GH¢8,577,000 (2010:  GH¢4,368,000 ) at the year end.

Nature of Business

The Bank is authorised by Bank of Ghana to carry on the business of universal 
banking. It obtained full banking license from Bank of Ghana in May 2009. 
There was no change in the nature of the Bank’s business during the year.

Subsidiary

Access Bank Ghana Limited has two wholly owned subsidiaries, namely, Big 
Ticket Holdings Limited (BTH) and Triumph Properties Limited (TPL). BTH is 
currently operating as a leasing company. TPL was dormant for and at the end 
of the period under review.

Assets and liabilities of Intercontinental Bank (Ghana) Limited will be merged 
with Access Bank (Ghana) Limited and Intercontinental Bank (Ghana) Limited 
will cease to operate as a going concern in March 2012, where management 
anticipate to obtain all the necessary approval from the Regulator. 

Results and Dividend

The directors of the group do not recommend the payment of dividends for 
the period under consideration.

The directors consider the state of the group’s affairs to be satisfactory in so 
far as it is within their powers. The directors have made an assessment of the 
ability of the group to operate as a going concern for the year ahead, and 
have no reason to believe the group would not be a going concern.

Holding Company

The bank is a subsidiary of Access Bank Plc, a company incorporated in the 
Federal Republic of Nigeria and licensed to carry out the business of universal 
banking.

Approval of the Financial Statements

The financial statements of the group were approved by the board of 

directors on ................................., 2012 and were signed on their behalf by:

.......................................………......  ……....….............……………
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GH¢’000 GH¢’000

Profit  before taxation is
from which is deducted taxation of

Giving profit for the period after taxation of 
less transfer to statutory reserve fund and other reserve of

Leaving a balance 
When added to a balance brought forward on retained
earnings of

Leaves a balance of

Financial Report

31 December 2011
The Group The Bank

13,034 12,968
(4,566) (4,550)

8,468 8,418
(5,467) (5,467)

3,001 2,951
3,634) 3,034

6,635 5,985

.........................…

tatements 
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Corporate Governance Report

INTRODUCTION

Access Bank (Ghana) Limited recognises that good corporate governance is 
fundamental to earning and retaining the confidence and trust of its 
stakeholders. It provides the structure through which the objectives of the 
Bank are set and the means of attaining those objectives.

The Access Bank Group governance framework helps the Board to discharge 
its role of providing oversight and strategic counsel in balance with its 
responsibility to ensure conformity with regulatory requirements and 
acceptable risk. Compliance with all applicable legislation, regulations, 
standards and codes is an essential characteristic of the Bank’s culture. The 
Board monitors compliance with these by means of management reports, 
which include information on any significant interaction with key 
stakeholders.

GOVERNANCE STRUCTURE

Shareholder’s Meeting
Shareholders meetings are duly convened and held in line with the Bank’s 
Regulations and existing statutory and regulatory regimes in an open 
manner, for the purpose of deliberating on issues affecting the Bank’s 
strategic direction. This occurs through a fair and transparent process and also 
serves as a medium for fostering interaction between the Board, 
Management and Shareholders. Attendance at the Annual General Meeting is 
open to all shareholders or their proxies. The Board ensures that shareholders 
receive the requisite notice for the Meeting.

The Board: Composition and Role
The Board comprises five members, which include the Chairman and four 
other Directors. Membership of the Board is expected to increase to seven 
with the addition of two eminent Ghanaians. The Board is responsible for 
ensuring the creation and delivery of sustainable value to the Bank’s 
stakeholders through its management of the Bank’s business. 

The Bank’s Principles of Corporate Governance which is a set of principles 
adopted by the Board as a definitive statement of Corporate Governance 
defines such matters which have been reserved for the Board. The matters 
reserved for the Board include, but are not limited to, defining the Bank’s 
business strategy and objectives, formulating risk policies and making 
decisions on the establishment of foreign subsidiaries. 

Executive Management is accountable to the Board for the development and 
implementation of strategy and policies. The Board meets quarterly and 
emergency meetings are convened as may be required by circumstances. 
Decisions are taken between meetings via written resolutions circulated to all 
Directors in accordance with the Companies Act, 1963, Act 179.

Standing Committees
The Board carries out its oversight function through its standing committees 
each of which has a charter that clearly defines its purpose, composition, 
structure, frequency of meetings, duties, tenure and reporting lines. In line 
with best practice, the Chairman of the Board does not sit on any of the 
committees. The Board’s three standing committees are: The Board Audit and 
Risk Management Committee, the Board Human Resources Committee and 
the Board Credit & Finance Committee.

Board Audit and Risk Committee
The Committee assists the Board in fulfilling its oversight responsibility 
relating to the integrity of the Bank’s financial statements and the financial 
reporting process; the independence and performance of the bank’s internal 
and external auditors; and the Bank’s system of internal control and 
mechanism for receiving complaints regarding the Bank’s accounting and 
operating procedures. The Bank’s Chief Internal Auditor and Chief 
Compliance Officer have access to the Committee and make quarterly 
presentations to the Committee. The Committee met four times during the 
2010 financial year.

Board Credit and Finance Committee
The Committee considers and approves loan applications above certain limits 
(as defined by the Board from time to time) which have been approved by the 
Management Credit Committee. It also acts as a catalyst for credit policy 
changes. The Committee met four times during the 2010 financial year.

Board Human Resources Committee
The Committee advises the Board on its oversight responsibilities in relation 
to compensation, benefits and all other human resource matters affecting the 
Directors and employees of the Bank. The objectives of the Committee 
include ensuring that the Bank’s human resources are maximised to support 
the long term success of the institution and to protect the welfare of all 
employees. The Committee met four times during the 2010 financial year.

Executive Committee
The Executive Committee (EXCO) is made up of the Managing Director as 
Chairman and senior officers of the bank. The Committee meets to deliberate 
and take policy decisions on the management of the Bank. It is primarily 
responsible for the implementation of strategies approved by the Board and 
ensuring the efficient deployment of the Bank’s resources.

Management Committees
These are standing committees made up of senior management of the Bank. 
The Committees are also risk driven and are set up to identify, analyse and 
make recommendations on risk pertaining to the Bank’s day to day activities. 
They ensure that the risk limits set by the Board and the regulatory bodies are 
complied with and also provide inputs to the various Board Committees in 
addition to ensuring the effective implementation of risk policies. They meet 
as frequently as risk issues occur and take actions and decisions within the 
confines of their respective powers. The management committees include: 
Management Credit Committee, Asset and Liabilities Committee, Enterprise 
Risk Management Committee, Criticized Assets Committee and IT Steering 
Committee.

Succession Planning
The Bank has a Succession Planning Policy which was approved by the Board. 
Succession Planning is aligned to the Bank’s performance management 
process. The policy identifies eleven (11) key positions including Country 
Managing Director positions for all Access Bank operating entities in respect 
of which there will be formal succession planning. The Bank’s policy provides 
that potential candidates for the other positions shall be identified at the 
beginning of each financial year by the Human Resources Head, based on 
performance and competencies.

Code of Ethics
Access Bank has articulated a “Code of Conduct” which specifies expected 
behaviour of its staff. The Code requires that each Bank staff shall read the 
Code of Conduct document and sign a confirmation that they have read and 
understood the document upon employment. In addition, there is a 
re-affirmation process that requires each member of staff to confirm 
understanding of and compliance with the Code of Conduct at least once in 
each year. The Bank has a Compliance Manual, which provides guidelines for 
addressing violations/breaches and ensuring enforcement of discipline with 
respect to staff conduct. The Bank also has a Disciplinary Guide which 
provides sample offences/violations and prescribes disciplinary measures to 
be adopted in various cases. The Head of Human Resources is responsible for 
the design and implementation of the “Code of Conduct” while the Chief 
Compliance Officer is responsible for monitoring and ensuring compliance.

Whistle Blowing
Access Bank has a whistle-blowing policy which provides the procedure for 
reporting suspected breaches of Access Bank’s internal policies, laws and 
regulations. There is a special e-mail address and telephone hotline dedicated 
for whistle-blowing. The Bank’s Chief Compliance Officer (CCO) is responsible 
for monitoring and reporting on the whistle blowing.

Annual Report and Accounts 2011
Access Bank (Ghana) Limited 24



Independent Auditor’s Report

Report on the Financial Statements
We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Access Bank 
(Ghana) Limited and its subsidiary which comprise the consolidated 
statement of financial position at 31 December 2011, the consolidated 
statements of comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of 
changes in equity and consolidated statements of cash flows for the year then 
ended and notes to the financial statements, which include a summary of 
significant accounting policies as set out on pages 32 to 60.

Directors’ Responsibility for the Financial Statements 

The directors are responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of 
these financial statements in accordance with International Financial 
Reporting Standards and in the manner required by the Companies Code, 
1963 (Act 179)  and the Banking Act, 2004 (Act 673) as amended by the 
Banking (Amendment) Act, 2007(Act 738) and for such internal control as the 
directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial 
statements that are free from material misstatements whether due to fraud or 
error.

Auditor’s Responsibility 
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements 
based on our audit.  We conducted our audit in accordance with International 
Standards on Auditing.  Those standards require that we comply with ethical 
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance 
whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement. 
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the 
amounts and disclosures in the financial statements.  The procedures selected 
depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of 
material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or 
error.  In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control 
relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial 
statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the 
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the 
effectiveness of the entity’s internal control.  An audit also includes evaluating 
the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of 
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall 
presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and 
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion 
In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view 
of the financial position of Access Bank (Ghana) Limited and its subsidiary as 
at 31 December 2011 and its financial performance and cash flows for the 
year then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting 
Standards and in the manner required by the Companies Code, 1963 (Act 179) 
and the Banking Act, 2004 (Act 673) as amended by the Banking 
(Amendment) Act, 2007 (Act 738).

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
Compliance with the requirements of Section 133 of the Companies Code, 
1963 (Act 179), and Section 78 of the Banking Act, 2004 (Act 673) as amended 
by the Banking (Amendments) Act, 2007 (Act 738).
We have obtained all the information and explanations, which to the best of 
our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purpose of our audit.
In our opinion, proper books of account have been kept and the statements 
of financial position and comprehensive income and the statement of 
changes in equity are in agreement with the books of account.
The Bank's transactions were within its powers and the Bank complied with 
the relevant provisions of the Banking Act, 2004 (Act 673) as amended by the 
Banking (Amendment) Act, 2007 (Act 738).

…………………………………………………
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
13 YIYIWA DRIVE, ABELENKPE
P. O. BOX GP 242
ACCRA, GHANA

..............................., 2012
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  Group  Group Bank Bank
  12 months  9 months 12 months 9 months

 Notes 2011  2010 2011 2010

  GH¢’000  GH¢’000 GH¢’000 GH¢’000

Assets
Cash and cash equivalents  11 38,250  17,481 37,381 16,861
Short term investments 12 34,450  29,956 34,450 29,956
Long term investments 12 114,498  123,014 114,498 123,014
Loans and advances  14  77,035  18,211 77,035 18,211
Property, plant and equipment 17 7,837  6,338 7,608 5,773
Intangible assets  18 630  526 630 526
Other assets  21 8,353  2,149 8,470 2,423
Investment in subsidiaries 27 – – 20 20

Total Assets   281,053  197,675 280,092 196,784

Liabilities

Equity

Due to other banks 13 6,349  11,407 6,349 11,407
Deposits from customers 22 165,285  91,845 165,285 91,845
Other liabilities  23 8,462

1,022
 3,096 8,438

796
 3,076

Tax payable  25 3,598  3,388
Deferred tax liabilities 20 970  457 909 396

Total Liabilities   182,088  110,403 181,777 110,112

Stated capital
Statutory reserve 26(a) 81,162  77,937 81,162 77,937
Credit risk reserve 26(b) 8,577  4,368 8,577 4,368
Retained earnings 26(c) 2,591  1,333 2,591 1,333
Other reserves 26(d) 6,635  3,634 5,985 3,034

Total Equity   98,965  87,272 98,315 86,672

Total Equity and Liabilities  281,053  197,675 280,092 196,784

Acceptances, bonds, guarantees and other obligations  
 for the account of customers  36 238,881,422  138,055,511 194,451,931  125,636,911

Total Assets and Contingent   1,043,705,194  831,839,449 921,412,511  773,211,630

 

  (Directors)

Mr Herbert Wigwe

Mr Frank Beecham   

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
As at 31 December 2011
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  Group  Group Bank Bank
  12 months  9 months 12 months 9 months

 Notes 2011  2010 2011 2010

  GH¢’000 GH¢’000 GH¢’000 GH¢’000

Interest income
Interest expense  5  27,977 20,728 27,977 20,728

Net interest income
Commission and fees 6
Other operating income

 5  (12,705) (5,651) (12,705) (5,646)

Net Fees and Commissions

15,272 15,077 15,272 15,082
 7   3,122

10,112 7,648 9,691 7,012

 1,803 3,122 1,803
 6,990 5,845 6,569 5,209

Total Operating Incomeet
 

 25,384 22,725 24,963 22,094

Impairment loss on financial assets

Other comprehensive income 

Personnel expenses   
Depreciation and amortization
Other operating expenses

 
15 (829) 11,407 6,349 11,407

Total operating expenses

 
8  (3,925) 91,845 165,285 91,845

 
17,18 (1,781)

(5,815)
 3,096 8,438

796
 3,076

 
9

10

 3,598  3,388

13,034 12,96812,303 12,002

 
(12,350) (10,422) 11,995) (10,092)

Total comprehensive income for the period 
attributable to equity holders of the Bank  8,468 8,495 8,418 8,281

    
    

Basic & Diluted

Earnings per share

 31 11Gp 11Gp 10Gp 10Gp

For the year ended 31 December 2011

Profit before tax

8,468

- - - -

8,4188,495 8,281Profit after tax

(4,566) 4,550)(3,808) (3,721)Taxation

Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
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  Group  Group Bank Bank
  12 months  9 months 12 months 9 months

  2011  2010 2011 2010

  GH¢’000 GH¢’000 GH¢’000 GH¢’000

 13,034 12,303 12,968 12,002

1,781 1,068 1,592 833

(102) (25) (22) 64 

 
 14,713 13,346 14,538 12,899

8,516 (123,014) 8,516 (123,014)

Tax paid

(58,824) (5,278) (58,824) (5,278)
(6,204)
(4,991)

 (56) (6,047)
(5,043)

 (886)
9,000  9,000

73,440 73,44084,867  84,867
5,427 5,361(314)  615

 (6,629) (212) (6,629) (156)
32,077 (34,795) 31,941 (34,696)

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flow
For the year ended 31 December 2011

Profit before tax
Adjustments for: 
Depreciation and amortization
(Profit)/Loss on disposal of property,
 plant and equipment

Changes in:  
Long term investments
Loans and advances
Other assets 
Due to other bank
Customer deposits
Other liabilities

Net cash flow used in investing activities

203 173 91 10

(3,208)
(405)

 (2,214) (3,209)
(405)

 (2,214)
(343)  (343)

73,440 73,44084,867  84,867

 (3,410) (2,384) (3,523) (2,547)

Net cash flow from/(used) operating
Activities
Cash flow from investing activities
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant
 and equipment
Acquisition of property, plant and equipment
Acquisition of intangible assets

Cash and cash equivalents at 31 December 

- (2,664) - (2,664)

3,225 10 3,225 10
3,225 (2,654) 3,225 (2,654

 

72,700 47,437 71,831 46,817

Cash and cash equivalents at 31 December 72,700 47,437 71,831 46,817

Financing activities
Repayment of long-term borrowings
Proceeds from issue of shares

Cash and bank balances
Short and long term investments

Net cash flow from/(used in) financing
activities
Net increase/ (decrease) in cash and
cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents: 
Balance at beginning 

25,263 (26,699) 25,014 (27,154)

47,437 74,136 46,817 73,971

38,250 17,481 37,381 16,861

34,450 29,956 34,450 29,956
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Ordinary

shares
Statutory

Reserve
Credit rist

Reserve
Reatained 

Earnings Total

  GH¢’000GH¢’000  GH¢’000 GH¢’000 GH¢’000

The Group

 77,927 227  719 (106) 78,767
10 -  - - 10

- -  - 8,495 8,495 
- 

 4,141
 614 (614) -

-  6,338 (4,141) -

3,225 - - - 3,225
- - - 8,468 8,468

- -
4,209

 1,258 (1,258) 8,495
-  - (4,209) -

-

  

4,36877,937

 

10 - - - 10
- - - 8,281 8,281

- -
4,141

 614  614)  -
-  - (4,141) -

1,333 3,634 87,272

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
For the year ended 31 December 2011

Balance as at 1 Jan 2010
Issued during the period
Profit attributable to 
shareholders of the group
Transfer to credit risk reserve
Transfer to statutory reserve

Balance at 31 December 2011 

  

8,57781,162

 

2,591 6,635 98,965Balance at 31 December 2011 

22777,927 719  (492) 78,381Balance at 31 December 2011 

  4,36877,937 1,333 3,034 86,672Balance at 31 December 2011 

Movement in issued share capital
Profit attributable to shareholders
of the group
Transfer to credit risk reserve
Transfer to statutory reserve

3,225 - - - 3,225
- - - 8,468 8,468

- -
4,209

 1,258 (1,258) 8,495
-  - (4,209) -

-

8,57781,162 2,591 5,985 98,965Balance at 31 December 2011 

Movement in issued share capital
Profit attributable to shareholders
of the group
Transfer to credit risk reserve
Transfer to statutory reserve

Issued during the period
Profit attributable to shareholders
of the bank
Transfer to credit risk reserve
Transfer to statutory reserve

The Bank



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

1. REPORTING ENTITY

Access Bank Ghana Limited “(the Bank)” is a company domiciled in Ghana. The 
Bank’s registered office is No. 9 La Tebu Crescent, off Giffard Road, East 
Cantonments, Accra. The financial statements of the Bank for the year ended 
31 December 2011 includes the bank and its subsidiary BTH Limited (together 
referred to as the group). The group principally is involved in corporate and 
retail banking as well as leasing operations.

2.  BASIS OF PREPARATION

(a)Statement of compliance

These financial statements which comprise the consolidated financial 
statements of the Group and the separate financial statements of the Bank 
have been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting 
Standards (IFRS) and its interpretations adopted by the International 
Accounting Standards Board (IASB).

The financial statements were authorized for issue by the Board of Directors 

on……………………2012.

(b)Basis of measurement

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the historical 
cost basis except for financial assets and liabilities required to be measured at 
fair value.

(c) Functional and presentation currency

These consolidated financial statements are presented in Ghana Cedis, which 
is the group’s functional currency.

(d) Use of estimates and judgements

The preparation of financial statements requires management to make 
judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of 
accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income 
and expenses. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. 
Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the 
estimate is revised and in any future periods affected.

In particular, information about significant areas of estimation uncertainty 
and critical judgements in applying accounting policies that have the most 
significant effect on the amount recognised in the financial statements are 
presented in notes 15(a), 17, 18 and 23.

(e) Foreign currency transactions

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated to the functional currency of 
the group at exchange rates at the dates of the transactions. Monetary assets 
and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies at the reporting date are 
retranslated to the functional currency at the exchange rate at that date.

The foreign currency gain or loss on monetary items is the difference between 
amortized cost in the functional currency at the beginning of the period, 
adjusted for effective interest and payments during the period, and the 
amortized cost in foreign currency translated at the exchange rate at the end 
of the period.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies that 
are measured at fair value are retranslated to the functional currency at the 
exchange rate at the date that the fair value was determined. Foreign 
currency differences arising on retranslation are recognised in income 
statement except for differences arising in the retranslation of available for 
sale financial instruments.

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The accounting policies set out below have been applied consistently to all 
periods presented in these consolidated financial statements, and have been 
applied consistently by the group entities.

(a) Basis of consolidation 

Business combination is accounted for using the purchase method as at the 
acquisition date which is the date on which control is transferred to the group. 
Control is the power to govern the financial and operational policies of the entity 
so as to obtain benefits from its activities. In assessing control, the group takes into 
consideration the potential voting rights that currently are exercisable.

(i) Subsidiaries

The financial statements of subsidiaries are included in the consolidated financial 
statements from the date control commences until the date control ceases. The 
financial statements have been prepared using uniform accounting policies for 
like transactions and other events in similar circumstances.

(ii) Transactions eliminated on consolidation

Intra-group balances and income and expenses (except foreign currency 
translation gains and losses) arising from intra-group transactions, are eliminated 
in preparing the consolidated financial statements. Unrealized losses are 
eliminated in the same way as intra-group gains but only to the extent that there 
is no evidence of impairment.

(b) Interest income and expenses

(Interest income and expense are recognised in statement of comprehensive 
income using the effective interest method. The effective interest rate is the rate 
that exactly discounts the estimated future cash payments and receipts through 
the expected life of the financial asset or liability (or, where appropriate, a shorter 
period) to the carrying amount of the financial asset or liability. The effective 
interest rate is established on initial recognition of the financial asset and liability 
and is not revised subsequently.

The calculation of the effective interest rate includes all fees and points paid or 
received transaction costs, and discounts or premiums that are an integral part of 
the effective interest rate. Transaction costs are incremental costs that are directly 
attributable to the acquisition, issue or disposal of a financial asset or liability.

Interest income and expense presented in the statement of comprehensive 
income is interest on financial assets and liabilities at amortised cost on an 
effective interest rate.
Fair value changes on other financial assets and liabilities carried at fair value 
through income statement are presented in trading income in the statement of 
comprehensive income.

 
(c) Fees and commission

Fees and commission income and expenses that are integral to the effective 
interest rate of financial assets or financial liabilities are included in the 
measurement of the effective interest rate.
Other fees and commission income, including account servicing fees, investment 
management fees, sales commission, placement fees and syndication fees, are 
recognised as the related services are performed. 
When a loan commitment is not expected to result in the draw-down of a loan, 
loan commitment fees are recognised on a straight-line basis over the 
commitment period.

Other fees and commission expense relates mainly to transaction and service fees, 
which are expensed as the services are received. 

 

Notes Forming Part of the Consolidated Financial
Statements for the year ended 31 December 2011
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d) Dividends

Dividend income is recognised when the right to receive income is 
established. Usually this is the ex-dividend date for equity securities. 
Dividends are reflected as a component of net trading income, net income on 
other financial instruments at fair value or other operating income based on 
the underlying classification of the equity instrument.

(e) Lease payments made

Payments made under operating leases are recognised in profit or loss on a 
straight-line basis over the term of the lease. Lease incentives received are 
recognised as an integral part of the total lease expense, over the term of the 
lease.
Minimum lease payments made under finance leases are apportioned 
between the finance expense and the reduction of the outstanding liability. 
The finance expense is allocated to each period during the lease term so as to 
produce a constant periodic rate of interest on the remaining balance of the 
liability. Contingent lease payments are accounted for by revising the 
minimum lease payments over the remaining term of the lease when the 
lease adjustment is confirmed.

(f) Taxation

Income tax expense comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax expense 
is recognised in  profit or loss except to the extent that it relates to items 
recognized directly in other comprehensive income, in which case it is 
recognised in other comprehensive income.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income for the period, 
using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date.

Deferred tax is recognized in respect of temporary differences between the 
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and 
the amounts used for taxation purposes. 
Deferred tax is not recognised for the following temporary differences: the 
initial recognition of goodwill, the initial recognition of assets or liabilities in a 
transaction that is not a business combination and that affects neither 
accounting nor taxable profit, and differences relating to investments in 
subsidiaries to the extent that they probably will not reverse in the 
foreseeable future. Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates that are expected 
to be applied to the temporary differences when they reverse, based on the 
laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting date.

A deferred tax asset is recognised only to the extent that it is probable that 
future taxable profits will be available against which the asset can be utilized. 
Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each reporting date and are reduced to 
the extent that it is no longer probable that the related tax benefit will be 
realized.  

(g) Financial assets and liabilities

(i) Recognition

The group initially recognises loans and advances, deposits; debt securities 
issued and subordinated liabilities on the date that they are originated.  All 
other financial assets and liabilities (including assets and liabilities designated 
at fair value through profit or loss) are initially recognised on the trade date at 
which the group becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the 
instrument.

 (ii) Derecognition

The group derecognizes a financial asset when the contractual rights to the 
cash flows from the asset expire, or it transfers the rights to receive the 
contractual cash flows on the financial asset in a transaction in which 
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset are 
transferred. 
The group derecognizes a financial liability when its contractual obligations 

Any interest in transferred financial assets that is created or retained by the group 
is recognised as a separate asset or liability.
The group derecognizes a financial liability when its contractual obligations are 
discharged or cancelled or expire.

The group enters into transactions whereby it transfers assets recognised on its 
statement of financial position, but retains either all risks and rewards of the 
transferred assets or a portion of them. If all or substantially all risks and rewards 
are retained, then the transferred assets are not derecognized from the statement 
of financial position. Transfers of assets with retention of all or substantially all risks 
and rewards include, for example, securities lending and repurchase transactions.

When assets are sold to a third party with a concurrent total rate of return swap on 
the transferred assets, the transaction is accounted for as a secured financing 
transaction similar to repurchase transactions. In transactions where the group 
neither retains nor transfers substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of 
a financial asset, it derecognises the asset if control over the asset is lost.
The group also derecognises certain assets when it charges off balances 
pertaining to the assets deemed to be uncollectible. 

(iii) Offsetting

Financial assets and liabilities are set off and the net amount presented in the 
statement of financial position when, and only when, the group has a legal right 
to set off the amounts and intends either to settle on a net basis or to realise the 
asset and settle the liability simultaneously.
Income and expenses are presented on a net basis only when permitted by the 
accounting standards, or for gains and losses arising from a bank of similar 
transactions such as in the group’s trading activity.

(iv) Amortized cost measurement

The amortized cost of a financial asset or liability is the amount at which the 
financial asset or liability is measured at initial recognition, minus principal 
repayments, plus or minus the cumulative amortisation using the effective 
interest method of any difference between the initial amount recognised and the 
maturity amount, minus any reduction for impairment.

(v) Fair value measurement

The determination of fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities is based 
on quoted market prices or dealer price quotations for financial instruments 
traded in active markets. For all other financial instruments fair value is 
determined by using valuation techniques. Valuation techniques include net 
present value techniques, the discounted cash flow method, comparison to 
similar instruments for which market observable prices exist, and valuation 
models. 

The group uses widely recognised valuation models for determining the fair value 
of common and simpler financial instruments like options and interest rate and 
currency swaps. For these financial instruments, inputs into models are market 
observable.

For more complex instruments, the group uses proprietary models, which usually 
are developed from recognised valuation models. Some or all of the inputs into 
these models may not be market observable, and are derived from market prices 
or rates or are estimated based on assumptions. When entering into a transaction, 
the financial instrument is recognised initially at the transaction price, which is the 
best indicator of fair value, although the value obtained from the valuation model 
may differ from the transaction price. This initial difference, usually an increase, in 
fair value indicated by valuation techniques is recognised in income depending 
upon the individual facts and circumstances of each transaction and not later than 
when the market data becomes observable.
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The value produced by a model or other valuation technique is adjusted to 
allow for a number of factors as appropriate, because valuation techniques 
cannot appropriately reflect all factors market participants take into account 
when entering into a transaction. Valuation adjustments are recorded to 
allow for model risks, bid-ask spreads, liquidity risks, as well as other factors. 
Management believes that these valuation adjustments are necessary and 
appropriate to fairly state financial instruments carried at fair value on the 
statement of financial position.

(vi) Identification and measurement of impairment

At each reporting date the group assesses whether there is objective 
evidence that financial assets not carried at fair value through profit or loss are 
impaired. Financial assets are impaired when objective evidence 
demonstrates that a loss event has occurred after the initial recognition of the 
asset, and that the loss event has an impact on the future cash flows on the 
asset that can be estimated reliably.

Objective evidence that financial assets (including equity securities) are 
impaired can include default or delinquency by a borrower, restructuring of a 
loan or advance by the group on terms that the group would not otherwise 
consider, indications that a borrower or issuer will enter bankruptcy, the 
disappearance of an active market for a security, or other observable data 
relating to a group of assets such as adverse changes in the payment status of 
borrowers or issuers in the group, or economic conditions that correlate with 
defaults in the group.

The group considers evidence of impairment at both a specific asset and 
collective level. All individually significant financial assets are assessed for 
specific impairment. All significant assets found not to be specifically 
impaired are then collectively assessed for any impairment that has been 
incurred but not yet identified. Assets that are not individually significant are 
then collectively assessed for impairment by grouping together financial 
assets (carried at amortised cost) with similar risk characteristics. In assessing 
collective impairment the group uses statistical modelling of historical trends 
of the probability of default, timing of recoveries and the amount of loss 
incurred, adjusted for management’s judgement as to whether current 
economic and credit conditions are such that the actual losses are likely to be 
greater or less than suggested by historical modelling.

Default rates, loss rates and the expected timing of future recoveries are 
regularly benchmarked against actual outcomes to ensure that they remain 
appropriate.

Impairment losses on assets carried at amortised cost are measured as the 
difference between the carrying amount of the financial assets and the 
present value of estimated cash flows discounted at the assets’ original 
effective interest rate. Losses are recognised in profit or loss and reflected in 
an allowance account against loans and advances. Interest on the impaired 
asset continues to be recognised through the unwinding of the 
discount.When a subsequent event causes the amount of impairment loss to 
decrease, the impairment loss is reversed through income statement.

Impairment losses on available-for-sale investment securities are recognised 
by transferring the difference between the amortised acquisition cost and 
current fair value out of other comprehensive income to profit or loss. When a 
subsequent event causes the amount of impairment loss on an 
available-for-sale debt security to decrease, the impairment loss is reversed 
through profit or loss. However, any subsequent recovery in the fair value of 
an impaired available-for-sale equity security is recognised directly in other 
comprehensive income. Changes in impairment provisions attributable to 
time value are reflected as a component of interest income.

(h) Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include notes and coins on hand, unrestricted balances 
held with central banks and highly liquid financial assets with original maturities 
of less than three months, which are subject to insignificant risk of changes in their 
fair value, and are used by the group in the management of its short-term 
commitments.

Cash and cash equivalents are carried at amortized cost in the statement of 
financial position.

(i) Loans and advances

Loans and advances are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable 
payments that are not quoted in an active market and that the group does not 
intend to sell immediately or in the near term.

When the group is the lessor in a lease agreement that transfers substantially all of 
the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of an asset to the lessee, the 
arrangement is presented within loans and advances.
When the group purchases a financial asset and simultaneously enters into an 
agreement to resell the asset (or a substantially similar asset) at a fixed price on a 
future date (“reverse repo or stock borrowing”), the arrangement is accounted for 
as a loan or advance, and the underlying asset is not recognised in the group’s 
financial statements.

Loans and advances are initially measured at fair value plus incremental direct 
transaction costs, and subsequently measured at their amortized cost using the 
effective interest method, except when the group chooses to carry the loans and 
advances at fair value through profit or loss.

(j) Investment securities

Investment securities are initially measured at fair value plus incremental direct 
transaction costs and subsequently accounted for depending on their 
classification as either held-to-maturity or available-for-sale.

(i) Held-to-maturity

Held-to-maturity investments are non-derivative assets with fixed or 
determinable payments and fixed maturity that the group has the positive intent 
and ability to hold to maturity, and which are not designated at fair value through 
profit or loss or available-for-sale. 

Held-to-maturity investments are carried at amortized cost using the effective 
interest method. Any sale or reclassification of a significant amount of 
held-to-maturity investments not close to their maturity would result in the 
reclassification of all held-to-maturity investments as available-for-sale, and 
prevent the group from classifying investment securities as held-to-maturity for 
the current and the following two financial years. 

(ii) Available-for-sale

Available-for-sale investments are non-derivative investments that are not 
designated as another category of financial assets. Unquoted equity securities 
whose fair value cannot be reliably measured are carried at cost. All other 
available-for-sale investments are carried at fair value.

Interest income is recognised in income statement using the effective interest 
method. Dividend income is recognised in profit or loss when the Group becomes 
entitled to the dividend. Foreign exchange gains or losses on available-for-sale 
debt security investments are recognised in income statement. 

Other fair value changes are recognised directly in equity until the investment is 
sold or impaired and the balance in equity is recognised in profit or loss.

(k) Property and equipment
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(i) Recognition and measurement

Items of property and equipment are measured at cost less accumulated 
depreciation and impairment losses.

Cost includes expenditures that are directly attributable to the acquisition of 
the asset. The cost of self-constructed assets includes the cost of materials 
and direct labour, any other costs directly attributable to bringing the asset to 
a working condition for its intended use, and the costs of dismantling and 
removing the items and restoring the site on which they are located. 
Purchased software that is integral to the functionality of the related 
equipment is capitalized as part of that equipment.

When parts of an item of property or equipment have different useful lives, 
they are accounted for as separate items (major components) of property and 
equipment.

(ii) Subsequent costs

The cost of replacing part of an item of property or equipment is recognised 
in the carrying amount of the item if it is probable that the future economic 
benefits embodied within the part will flow to the Group and its cost can be 
measured reliably. The costs of the day-to-day servicing of property and 
equipment are recognised in income statement as incurred.

(iii) Depreciation

Depreciation is recognised in the income statement on a straight-line basis 
over the estimated useful lives of each part of an item of property and 
equipment. Leased assets are depreciated over the shorter of the lease term 
and their useful lives. Freehold land is not depreciated. The estimated 
depreciation rate applicable to items of property plant and equipment for the 
period are as follows:

• Buildings   2%
• Equipment  20%
• Computers  33.33%
• Fixtures and fittings  20%
• Motor Vehicle               25%

Depreciation methods, useful lives and residual values of items of property 
plant and equipment are reassessed annually and adjusted if appropriate.

(l) Intangible assets

(i) Goodwill

Goodwill (negative goodwill) arises on the acquisition of subsidiaries.

Acquisitions on or after 1 January 2004

For acquisitions on or after 1 January 2004, goodwill represents the excess of 
the cost of the acquisition over the Group’s interest in the net fair value of the 
identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities of the acquiree. When 
the fair of assets acquired in a business combination transaction exceeds the 
purchase consideration, the resultant difference is recognised in income in 
the period.

Subsequent measurement

Goodwill is measured at cost less accumulated impairment losses.

(ii) Software

Software acquired by the group is stated at cost less accumulated amortization 
and accumulated impairment losses.  Expenditure on internally developed 
software is recognised as an asset when the Group is able to demonstrate its 
intention and ability to complete the development and use the software in a 
manner that will generate future economic benefits, and can reliably measure the 
costs to complete the development. The capitalized costs of internally developed 
software include all costs directly attributable to developing the software, and are 
amortized over its useful life. Internally developed software is stated at capitalized 
cost less accumulated amortization and impairment.

Subsequent expenditure on software assets is capitalized only when it increases 
the future economic benefits embodied in the specific asset to which it relates. All 
other expenditure is expensed as incurred.

Amortization is recognised in income statement on a straight-line basis over the 
estimated useful life of the software, from the date that it is available for use. The 
estimated useful life of software is three years. Amortization methods, useful lives 
and residual values are reviewed at each financial year end and adjusted if 
appropriate.

(m) Leased assets – lessee 

Leases in terms of which the group assumes substantially all the risks and rewards 
of ownership are classified as finance leases. Upon initial recognition the leased 
asset is measured at an amount equal to the lower of its fair value and the present 
value of the minimum lease payments. Subsequent to initial recognition, the asset 
is accounted for in accordance with the accounting policy applicable to that asset.

Other leases are operating leases and, except for investment property, the leased 
assets are not recognised on the group’s statement of financial position.

(n) Impairment of non-financial assets

The carrying amounts of the group’s non-financial assets, other than investment 
property and deferred tax assets are reviewed at each reporting date to determine 
whether there is any indication of impairment. If any such indication exists then 
the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated. The recoverable amount of goodwill 
is estimated at each reporting date.An impairment loss is recognised if the 
carrying amount of an asset or its cash-generating unit exceeds its recoverable 
amount. A cash-generating unit is the smallest identifiable asset group that 
generates cash flows that largely are independent from other assets and groups. 

(o) Impairment of non-financial assets 

Impairment losses are recognised in income statement. Impairment losses 
recognised in respect of cash-generating units are allocated first to reduce the 
carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the units and then to reduce the 
carrying amount of the other assets in the unit (group of units) on a pro rata basis.

The recoverable amount of an asset or cash-generating unit is the greater of its 
value in use and its fair value less costs to sell. In assessing value in use, the 
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax 
discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money 
and the risks specific to the asset.

An impairment loss in respect of goodwill is not reversed. In respect of other 
assets, impairment losses recognised in prior periods are assessed at each report-
ing date for any indications that the loss has decreased or no longer exists. An 
impairment loss is reversed if there has been a change in the estimates used to 
determine the recoverable amount. An impairment loss is reversed only to the 
extent that the asset’s carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that 
would have been determined, net of depreciation or amortization, if no impair-
ment loss had been recognised.
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p) Deposits, debt securities issued and subordinated liabilities

The group classifies capital instruments as financial liabilities or equity 
instruments in accordance with the substance of the contractual terms of the 
instrument. The group’s redeemable preference shares bear 
non-discretionary coupons and are redeemable by the holder, and are 
therefore included within subordinated liabilities.

Deposits, debt securities issued and subordinated liabilities are initially 
measured at fair value plus transaction costs, and subsequently measured at 
their amortized cost using the effective interest method, except where the 
group chooses to carry the liabilities at fair value through profit or loss.
 
(q) Provisions

A provision is recognised if, as a result of a past event, the group has a present 
legal or constructive obligation that can be estimated reliably, and it is 
probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the 
obligation. Provisions are determined by discounting the expected future 
cash flows at a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the 
time value of money and, where appropriate, the risks specific to the liability.

A provision for restructuring is recognised when the group has approved a 
detailed and formal restructuring plan, and the restructuring either has 
commenced or has been announced publicly. Future operating costs are not 
provided for.

A provision for onerous contracts is recognised when the expected benefits 
to be derived by the group from a contract are lower than the unavoidable 
cost of meeting its obligations under the contract. The provision is measured 
at the present value of the lower of the expected cost of terminating the 
contract and the expected net cost of continuing with the contract. Before a 
provision is established, the group recognizes any impairment loss on the 
assets associated with that contract.
 
 (r) Financial guarantees

Financial guarantees are contracts that require the group to make specified 
payments to reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs because a specified 
debtor fails to make payment when due in accordance with the terms of a 
debt instrument. Financial guarantee liabilities are initially recognised at their 
fair value, and the initial fair value is amortized over the life of the financial 
guarantee. The guarantee liability is subsequently carried at the higher of this 
amortized amount and the present value of any expected payment (when a 
payment under the guarantee has become probable). Financial guarantees 
are included within other liabilities.

(s) Employee benefits

(i) Defined contribution plans

Obligations for contributions to defined contribution pension plans are 
recognised as an expense in income statement when they are due.

(ii) Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised as an expense when the group is 
demonstrably committed, without realistic possibility of withdrawal, to a 
formal detailed plan to terminate employment before the normal retirement 
date. Termination benefits for voluntary redundancies are recognised if the 
group has made an offer encouraging voluntary redundancy, it is probable 
that the offer will be accepted, and the number of acceptances can be 
estimated reliably. 

 

(iii)  Short-term benefits

Short-term employee benefit obligations are measured on an undiscounted basis 
and are expensed as the related service is provided.

A provision is recognised for the amount expected to be paid under short-term 
cash bonus or profit-sharing plans if the group has a present legal or constructive 
obligation to pay this amount as a result of past service provided by the employee 
and the obligation can be estimated reliably. 

(t) Share capital and reserves

(i) Share capital

The group classifies capital instruments as financial liabilities or equity 
instruments in accordance with the substance of the contractual terms of the 
instrument. The group’s share capital is not redeemable by holders, and bears an 
entitlement to distributions that is non-cumulative and at the discretion of the 
directors. Accordingly, they are presented as a component of issued capital within 
equity.

(ii) Share issue costs

Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of an equity instrument are 
deducted from the initial measurement of the equity instruments.

 
(iii) Statutory Reserve:  

Transfer into the statutory reserves is made based on the requirement of section 
29(i) of the Banking Act 2004 (as amended). In this regard, an amount more or 
equivalent to:
• 50% of the bank’s net profit for the period if  the bank’s reserve fund is less than  
  50% of its paid up capital;
• 25% of the bank’s net profit for the period if  the bank’s reserve fund is less than  
  100% of its paid up capital; and
• 12.5% of the bank’s net profit for the period if the Bank’s reserve fund is equal to  
  100% or more of its paid up capital.

(iv) Credit risk reserve: 

This reserve is created to set aside the excess of the amount recognized as 
impairment loss of  loans and advances over the provision for bad and doubtful 
debts as required by the Bank of Ghana prudential guidelines.

 (u) Earnings per share

The group presents basic and diluted earnings per share (EPS) data for its ordinary 
shares. Basic EPS is calculated by dividing the profit or loss attributable to ordinary 
shareholders of the group by the weighted average number of ordinary shares 
outstanding during the period. Diluted EPS is determined by adjusting the profit 
or loss attributable to ordinary shareholders and the weighted average number of 
ordinary shares outstanding for the effects of all dilutive potential ordinary shares.
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 (v) New standards and interpretations not yet adopted

A number of new standards, amendments to standards effective and 
interpretations are not yet effective for the year ended 31 December 2011  
and have not been applied in preparing these consolidated financial 
statements. Below are the relevant new standards and interpretations:

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments

IFRS 9 is the first standard issued as part of a wider project to replace IAS 39.

IFRS 9 retains but simplifies the mixed measurement model and establishes 
two primary measurement categories for financial assets: amortised cost and 
fair value. The basis of classification depends on the entity’s business model 
and the contractual cash flow characteristics of the financial asset. The 
guidance in IAS 39 on impairment of financial assets and hedge accounting 
continues to apply.

Prior periods need not be restated if an entity adopts the standard for 
reporting periods beginning before 1 January 2012.

This standard is effective for financial reporting periods commencing on or 
after 1 January 2013.

Below is a summary of amendments/improvements to standards and 
interpretations that are not yet effective:

 Amendment/Improvement Effective Date

IAS 12 IAS 12: Deferred tax: recovery of underlying assets 
 1 January 2012

IAS 1 IAS 1: Presentation of financial statements. 1 July 2012

IFRS 9 IFRS 9: Financial Instruments. To replace IAS 39 Financial   
 1 January 2013
 Instruments: Recognition and Measurement

 
IFRS 10 IFRS 10: Consolidated Financial statements. Replaces the   
 1 January 2013
 Consolidation requirements in SIC-12 Consolidation- Special 
 purpose entities and IAS 27 Consolidated and Separate Financial
  Statements

IFRS 11 IFRS 11: Joint Arrangements. 1 January 2013

        
IFRS 12 IFRS 12: Disclosure of Interests in other entities 1 January 2013

        
IFRS 13 IFRS 13: Fair Value Measurement 1 January 2013

IAS 19 IAS 19: Employee Benefits  1 January 2013

IAS 27 IAS 27: Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements.   
 1 January 2013
 Consequential amendments from the issue of IFRS 10, 11 and 12.

 
IAS 28 IAS 28: Investments in Associates. Consequential amendments 
 from the issue of IFRS 10,11 and 12.

4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(a) Introduction and overview
The group has exposure to the following risks arising from its use of financial 
instruments:

• credit risk
• liquidity risk
• market risks
• operational risks

This note presents the group’s exposure to each of the above risks, the group’s 
objectives, policies and processes for measuring and managing risk, as well as the 
bank’s management of capital.

(b) Risk management framework

The overall responsibility of risk management throughout the group rests with the 
Board of Directors. 

The Board is assisted in discharging its risk management responsibilities through 
the  Risk Management and Compliance Division which provides oversight of risk 
management across the Bank to ensure that the full spectrum of risks facing the 
Bank are properly identified, measured, monitored and controlled in order to 
minimize adverse outcomes.

The division is complemented by the Financial Control and Corporate Affairs 
Departments in the management of strategic and reputational risks respectively. 
The Risk Management and Compliance Division co-ordinates the process of 
monitoring and reporting of risks in the Bank.

In addition, Internal Control Department has the responsibility of auditing the risk 
management and control function to ensure that all units charged with risk 
management perform their roles effectively on a continuous basis.

Access Bank has adopted the concept of enterprise-wide risk management 
referred to as Enterprise Risk Management (ERM).  ERM is a structured approach to 
identifying opportunities, assessing the risk inherent in these opportunities and 
managing these risks proactively in a cost effective manner. It is an integrated 
approach to events identification and analysis for proper assessment, monitoring 
and identification of business opportunities.

• Establishment of the Bank’s risk philosophy, culture and objectives;

• Establishment of the Bank’s risk management governance framework; 

• Articulation of the Bank’s risk management  to stakeholders and development  
  of an action plan to meet their risk management expectations; and

• Establishment of policies and procedures to identify, measure, monitors, report  
  and control the risks the Bank faces.

Access Banks’ risk management framework places significant emphasis on:

• Establishing a strong, independent Risk Management Function to champion,  
  coordinate and monitor the enterprise-wide risk methodology across the Bank  
  and subsidiaries; 

• Formally assigning accountability and responsibility for risk management; and

• Breaking the Bank’s risk universe down into manageable, tailored,   
   well-resourced and specialized components. 
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(c) Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the group if a customer or 
counterparty to a financial instrument fails to meet its contractual 
obligations, and arises principally from the group’s loans and advances to 
customers and other banks and investment securities. For risk management 
reporting purposes, the group considers and consolidates all elements of 
credit risk exposure (such as individual obligor default risk, country and sector 
risk).  

The Management Credit Committee is responsible for managing credit risks in the 
Bank. The members of the committee  include all group heads and Head, Credit 
Risk. 
This Committee with the assistance of the Credit Risk Management function:
a) reviews Credit Policy recommendations for Board approval;
b) approves individual credit exposure in line with its approval limits;
c) agree on portfolio plan/strategy for the Bank;
d) reviews monthly credit risk reports and remedial action plan; and
e) co-ordinates the Bank’s response to material events that may have an impact         
     on the credit portfolio.

Financial Risk Management

Loans &
Advances

Finacials
Lease 

Loans &
Advances Total 

Finacials
Lease Total 

  GH¢’000GH¢’000GH¢’000  GH¢’000 GH¢’000 GH¢’000

Carrying amount 75,740 1,295 77,035 16,629 1,582 18,211

232 42 274 1,234 1,107 2,341
3 - 3 4 178 182

2,926 407 3,333 58 720 778

Individually impaired
 

Grade 6 impaired
Grade 7 impaired
Grade 8 impaired

 

Gross amount
Allowance for impairment  

 

3,161 449 3,610 1,296 2,005 3,301 
 (1,875) (95) (1,719) (156)  (1,050) (1,145) 

 

 

Gross amount
Allowance for impairment  

74,435 1,023 75,458 15,479 635 16,114 
 (158) (51) (137) (21) (8) (59) 

 1,735 1,201 1,442 293  955 2,156

 
 75,300 15,428 74,298 1,002  627 16,055

Collectively impaired

Grade 1 – 3: Low – fair risk
Grade 4 – 5: Watch list

 
 

96172,337
2,098

 73,298
2,160

 15,261 186
449

 15,447
62 218  667

The Bank/The Group  At 31 December 2010
Advances

under

 At 31 December 2010
Advances

under

Carrying amounts

Carrying amounts

 

 

349 6 356 216 86 302

347 19 366 218 449 667
Past due but not impaired

Gross amount

 

696 26 722 434 535 969 

 

 

Gross amount 73,739 997 74,736 15,045 100 15,145 

 
 75,458 15,479 74,435 1,023  635 16,114
  
 (158) (51) (137) (21)  (8) (59) 
  
 75,300 15,428 74,298 1,002  627 16,055

Neither past due nor impaired

Grade 1 – 3: Low – fair risk

Grade 1 – 3: Low – fair risk
Grade 4 – 5: Watch list

 
 

99773,739  74,736 15,045 100 15,145

Total Gross amount

Allowance for impairment

Carrying value
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ii. Impaired loans and securities 

Impaired loans and securities are loans and securities for which the group 
determines that it is probable that it will be unable to collect all principal and 
interest due according to the contractual terms of the loan /securities 
agreement(s). These loans are graded 6 to 8 in the group’s internal credit risk 
grading system.

iii. Past due but not impaired

Loans and securities where contractual interest or principal payments are 
past due but the Group believes that impairment is not appropriate on the 
basis of the level of security / collateral available and / or the stage of 
collection of amounts owed to the group.

iv. Loans with renegotiated terms

Loans with renegotiated terms are loans that have been restructured due to 
deterioration in the borrower’s financial position and where the group has 
made concessions that it would not otherwise consider. Once the loan is 
restructured it remains in this category independent of satisfactory 
performance after restructuring.

v. Allowance for impairment

The group establishes an allowance for impairment losses that represents its 
estimate of incurred losses in its loan portfolio. The main components of this 
allowance are a specific loss component that relates to individually significant 
exposures, and a collective loan loss allowance established for groups of 
homogeneous assets in respect of losses that have been incurred but have 
not been identified on loans subject to individual assessment for impairment.

v. Allowance for impairment

The Group writes off a loan/security balance (and any related allowances for 
impairment losses) when Group Credit determines that the loans / securities are 
uncollectible. This determination is reached after considering information such as 
the occurrence of significant changes in the borrower/issuer’s financial position 
such that the borrower/issuer can no longer pay the obligation, or that proceeds 
from collateral will not be sufficient to pay back the entire exposure. For smaller 
balance standardised loans, charge off decisions generally are based on a product 
specific past due status.

The group holds collateral against loans and advances to customers in the form of 
mortgage interests over property, other registered securities over assets, and 
guarantees. 

Estimates of fair value are based on the value of collateral assessed at the time of 
borrowing, and generally are not updated except when a loan is individually 
assessed as impaired. Collateral generally is not held over loans and advances to 
banks, except when securities are held as part of reverse repurchase and securities 
borrowing activity. Collateral usually is not held against investment securities, and 
no such collateral was held at 31 December 2011 or 31 December 2010.

Below is an analysis of collateral held by the group against loans and advances to 
customers in the form of mortgage interests over property, other registered 
securities over assets, and guarantees:

Financial Risk Management(cont’d)

 

 

 

Loans &
Advances

Finacials
Lease 

Loans &
Advances Total 

Finacials
Lease Total 

  GH¢’000GH¢’000GH¢’000  GH¢’000 GH¢’000 GH¢’000

349 6 356 216 86 302
347 19 366 218 449 667

Past due but not impaired

Grade 1 – 3: Low – fair risk
Grade 4 – 5: Watch list

 

Gross amount

 

696 26 722 434 535 969 

 

 
Gross amount 73,739 997 74,736 15,045 100 15,145 

Neither past due nor impaired

Grade 1 – 3: Low to fair risk

Total gross amounts 

Allowance for impairment

Carrying value

 
 

997

1,023

(21)

73,739  74,736 15,045 100 15,145

74,435
 75,458 15,479 635 16,114

(137)

 

(158) (51) (8) (59) 

1,00274,298 75,300 15,428 627 16,055

 

The Bank/The Group  At 31 December 2010
Advances

under

 At 31 December 2010
Advances

under
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d. Settlement risk

The group’s activities may give rise to risk at the time of settlement of 
transactions and trades. Settlement risk is the risk of loss due to the failure of 
a company to honour its obligations to deliver cash, securities or other assets 
as contractually agreed.

For certain types of transactions the group mitigates this risk by conducting 
settlements through a settlement agent to ensure that the trade is settled 
only when both parties have fulfilled their contractual settlement obligations. 
Settlement limits from part of credit approval. Acceptance of settlement risk 
on free settlements trades requires transaction specific or counter party 
specific approval from group risk department.

4.2 Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the group is unable to meet its payment 
obligations when they  fall due and to replace funds when they are 
withdrawn; the consequence of which may be the failure to meet obligations 
to repay depositors and fulfil commitments to lend in a timely and 
cost-effective manner without incurring unacceptable cost or losses. 

Liquidity risk in the group can arise from the inability of the group to manage 
unplanned decreases or changes in funding sources or from the group’s 
failure to recognize and address changes in market condition that can affect 
its ability to liquidate assets quickly and with minimal loss in value.

a. Management of liquidity risk

The group’s approach to managing liquidity is to ensure, as far as possible, 
that it will always have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when due, 
under both normal and stressed conditions, without incurring unacceptable 
losses or risking damage to the group’s reputation. 

Central treasury department receives from other business units regarding the 
liquidity profile of their financial assets and liabilities and details of other 
projected cash flows arising from projected future business. Central treasury then 
maintains a portfolio of short-term liquid assets, largely made up of short-term 
liquid investment securities, loans and advances to banks and other inter-bank 
facilities, to ensure that sufficient liquidity is maintained within the group as a 
whole. The liquidity requirements of business units and subsidiaries are met 
through short-term loans from Central Treasury department to cover short term 
fluctuations and longer term funding to address any structural liquidity 
requirement.

The daily liquidity position is monitored and regular liquidity stress testing is 
conducted under a variety of scenarios covering both normal and more severe 
market conditions. Daily reports cover the liquidity position of both the group and 
operating subsidiaries. A summary report, including any exceptions and remedial 
action taken, is submitted regularly to the board.

4.3 Liquidity risk exposure

The key measure used by the group for managing liquidity risk is the ratio of net 
liquid assets to deposits from customers. For this purpose net liquid assets are 
considered as including cash and cash equivalents and investment grade debt 
securities for which there is an active and liquid market less any deposits from 
banks, debt securities issued, other borrowings and commitments maturing 
within the next month. 

A similar, but not identical, calculation is used to measure the group’s compliance 
with the liquidity limit established by the group’s lead regulator, the Bank of 
Ghana of net liquid assets to deposits of customers at the reporting date and 
during the reporting period were as follows: 

 

 

 2011  2010

    GH¢’000 GH¢’000

1,352 1,511
115,462 245

Against individually impaired

Property
Other 

 

 

116,814 1,756 

 

34,353 5,561
7,316 22,763

Against collectively impaired

Property
Other 

 

 

41,669 28,324 

 

12,050 2,387
3,256 2,010

Against past due but not impaired

Property
Other 

 

 

15,306 4,397 

 

22,303 3,174
4,060 20,754

Against neither past due nor impaired

Property
Other 

Total

 

 

26,363 23,928

158,483 30,081
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GH¢’000GH¢’000

 

GH¢’000

 

GH¢’000

 

GH¢’000

9% 9% 16% 16%

12% 12% 20% 20%
16% 16% 54% 54%

9% 9% 9% 9%

 
At period – end
Average for the period
Maximum for the period
Minimum for the period 

The Group

4.3 (ii) Residual contractual maturities of financial liabilities

2011
Non – derivative liabilities
Customer deposits
Due to other banks
Other liabilities

165,285

180,096 183,286 103,637 39,348 40,301

168,143 91,018 37,119 40,006
6,349 6,387 6,387 - -
8,462 8,756 6,232 2,229 295

2010
Non – derivative liabilities
Customer deposits
Due to other banks
Other liabilities

91,845

106,348 183,262 103,722 39,239 40,301

93,456 18,421 32,025 43,010
11,407 11,475 10,724 751 -

3,096 3,811 3,811 - -

The Bank 2011
Non – derivative liabilities
Customer deposits
Due to other banks
Other liabilities

2010
Non – derivative liabilities
Customer deposits

165,285

180,071 183,262 103,722 39,239 40,301

91,845 93,456 43,010 32,025 18,421

168,143 91,018 37,119 40,006
6,349 6,387 6,349 38 -
8,437 8,732 6,355 2,082 295

The Group

Carrying
Amount

Gross
Norminal
(outflow)

Less
than 1
Month

3 Months
to 1 year

1 - 3
Months

The Bank
At 31 December 2011

The Group The Bank
At 31 December 2011
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The previous table shows the undiscounted cash flows on the group’s 
financial liabilities on the basis of their earliest possible contractual maturity. 
The group’s expected cash flows on these instruments vary significantly from 
this analysis. For example, demand deposits from customers are expected to 
maintain a stable or increasing balance.

a. Market risk

The Banks exposure to market risk arises from both interest rate risk and 
foreign exchange risk.
Exposure to foreign exchange risk arises when the experience an economic or 
accounting benefit due to movements in exchange rates. This risk may arise 
as a result of:

• business activities or operations in foreign markets;
• investments in securities issued by overseas entities;
• investments in securities which are denominated in foreign currencies and
• foreign funding.

Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in prevailing interest rate will 
adversely affect the earnings of the group resulting in reduced net interest 
income.

Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices, such as interest rate, 
equity prices, foreign exchange rates and credit spreads (not relating to 
changes in the obligor’s / issuer’s credit standing) will affect the group’s 
income or the value of its holdings of financial instruments. The objective of 
market risk management is to manage and control market risk exposures 
within acceptable parameters, while optimising the return on risk.

b. Management of market risks

The group’s exposure to market risk arises from non-trading portfolios and 
transactions denominated in foreign currency.

Overall authority for market risk is vested in the board of directors and assisted by 
the treasury and credit administration departments. Group Risk is responsible for 
the development of detailed risk

c. Exposure to interest rate risk – non trading portfolios

The principal risk to which non-trading portfolios are exposed is the risk of loss 
from fluctuations in the future cash flows or fair values of financial instrument 
because of a change in market interest rates. Interest rate risk is managed 
principally through monitoring interest rate gaps and by having pre-approved 
limits for repricing bands.

The board of directors is the monitoring body for compliance with these limits and 
is assisted by Risk Management in its day-to-day monitoring activities.
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GH¢’000GH¢’000 GH¢’000 GH¢’000 GH¢’000

The Group/The Bank
Loans and advances 
Short term investments
Long term investments

Due to other banks
Deposit from customers

  77,035

225,983 228,016 41,133 53,167 133,716

79,068 18,833 41,017 19,218
34,450 34,450 22,300 12,150 -

114,498 114,498 - - 114,498

6,349 6,387
168,143

6,387 - -
165,285 91,018 37,119 40,006

53,48653,349 (56,272) 16,048 93,710

The summary of the group's interest rate gap position on non trading portfolios is as follows:

The management of interest rate risk against interest rate gap limits is supplemented by monitoring the sensitivity of the Group’s 
financial assets and liabilities to various standard and non-standard interest rate scenarios.

Carrying
Amount

Gross
Norminal
(outflow)

Less
than 1
Month

3 Months
to 1 year

1 - 3
Months

31 December 2011

Interest rate gap

GH¢’000GH¢’000 GH¢’000 GH¢’000 GH¢’000

The Group/The Bank
Loans and advances 
Short term investments
Long term investments

Due to other banks
Deposit from customers

  18,211

171,181 196,870 8,917 32,629 155,324

21,853 3,417 4,578 13,858
29,956 33,551 5,500 28,051 -

123,014 141,466 - - 141,466

11,407 11,475
93,456

10,724 751 -
91,845 18,421 32,025 43,010

91,93967,929 (20,228) (147) 112,314

Carrying
Amount

Gross
Norminal
(outflow)

Less
than 1
Month

3 Months
to 1 year

1 - 3
Months

31 December 2011

Interest rate gap
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GH¢’000 GH¢’000 GH¢’000 GH¢’000

Impact on profit

Assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Loans and advances 

95 95 346 346

A change in interest rates by 100 basis points will impact on profit as follows:

d. Exposure to foreign currency risk

The group holds balances in foreign currencies. Its exposure arises mainly from transactions in US Dollars (US$), Great British Pounds (GBP) and the Euro. 
The concentration of foreign currency denominated assets and liabilities are as follows:

The
Group

The
Bank

2011

The
Group

The
Bank

2010

42,962 113 1,320 44,395

(48,255) 49 (15,368) (63,574)

The Group/The Bank

Net exposure

7,496 113 809 8,418

35,466 - 511 35,977

US$
000

GBP
000

Total
000

EURO
000

Liabilities
Deposit from customers
Interbank takings and Other borrowings
Line facilities and LCs 

42,962 113 1,320 44,395

48,159 64 928   49,151

5,510 - 149 5,659

37,548 - 15,611 53,159

31 December 2011

Assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Loans and advances 

42,962 113 1,320 44,395

(12,791) 45 - (12,746)

The Group/The Bank

Net exposure

5,599 57 274 5,930

7,077 - - 7,077

US$
000

GBP
000

Total
000

EURO
000

Liabilities
Deposit from customers
Interbank takings and Other borrowings
Line facilities and LCs 

6,532 12 274  6,818

4,779 - - 4,779

14,156 - - 14,156

31 December 2011
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4.4 Operational risk

Operational risk arises from other sources of risk aside credit risk, liquidity risk, 
and market risk. This may include risks like reputation risk, compliance risk etc.

Operational risk is the risk of direct or indirect loss arising from a wide variety 
of causes associated with the group’s processes, personnel, technology and 
infrastructure, and from external factors other than credit, market and 
liquidity risks such as those arising from legal and regulatory requirements 
and generally accepted standards of corporate behaviour. Operational risks 
arise from all of the group’s operations and are faced by all business entities.

The group’s objective is to manage operational risk so as to balance the 
avoidance of financial losses and damage to the group’s reputation with 
overall cost effectiveness and to avoid control procedures that restrict 
initiative and creativity.

The primary responsibility for the development and implementation of 
controls to address operational risk is assigned to senior management within 
each business unit. This responsibility is supported by the development of 
overall group standards for the management of operational risk in the 
following areas:

− requirements for the reconciliation and monitoring of transactions;
− compliance with regulatory and other legal requirements;
− documentation of controls and procedures;
− requirements for the reporting of operational losses and proposed   
    remedial action;
− development of contingency plans;
− training and professional development;
− ethical and business standards;
− risk mitigation, including insurance where this is effective.

Compliance with group standards is supported by a programme of periodic 
reviews undertaken by internal audit. The results of internal audit reviews are 
discussed with the management of the business unit to which they relate, 
with summaries submitted to the Audit Committee and senior management 
of the group.

4.5 Capital management

The bank’s lead regulator, Bank of Ghana sets and monitors capital requirements 
for the bank as a whole.
In implementing current capital requirements, the bank maintains the  prescribed 
ratio of total capital to total risk-weighted assets.

Various limits are applied to elements of the capital base. The amount of 
innovative tier 1 securities cannot exceed 15 percent of total tier 1 capital; 
qualifying tier 2 capital cannot exceed tier 1 capital; and qualifying term 
subordinated loan capital may not exceed 50 percent of tier 1 capital. There also 
are restrictions on the amount of collective impairment allowances that may be 
included as part of tier 2 capital. Other deductions from capital include the 
carrying amounts of investments in subsidiaries that are not included in the 
regulatory consolidation, investments in the capital of banks and certain other 
regulatory items.

Banking operations are categorised as either trading book or banking book, and 
risk-weighted assets are determined according to specified requirements that 
seek to reflect the varying levels of risk attached to assets and off-balance sheet 
exposures.

The group’s policy is to maintain a strong capital base so as to maintain investor, 
creditor and market confidence and to sustain future development of the 
business. The impact of the level of capital on shareholders’ return is also 
recognised and the group recognises the need to maintain a balance between the 
higher returns that might be possible with greater gearing and the advantages 
and security afforded by a sound capital position. The group and its individually 
regulated operations have complied with all externally imposed capital 
requirements throughout the period.

d. Capital adequacy ratio

The capital adequacy ratio of the bank is the quotient of the capital base of the 
Bank and the Bank's risk weighted asset base. In accordance with the Bank of 
Ghana regulations, a minimum capital adequacy ratio of 10% is to be maintained 
by banks.

GH¢’000 GH¢’000

Impact on profit
2011
US$
GBP 

2010
US$
GBP 

92 92
4 4

88 88
3 3

A change in interest rates by 100 basis points will impact on profit as follows:

The
Group

The
Bank
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GH¢’000 GH¢’000 GH¢’000 GH¢’000

Tier 1 Capital

Ordinary share capital
Disclosed reserves

Total shareholder’s fund/ regulatory capital

Total risk weighted assets

Total regulatory capital expressed as a 
percentage of total risk weighted capital

Risk weighted assets

The
Group

The
Bank

2011

The
Group

The
Bank

2010

Adjusted risk weighted assets
Risk weighted contingent liabilities
Risk adjusted net open position

91,512 90,551 30,791 30,023
64,242 64,242 27,190 27,190

5,328 5,328 472 472

161,082 160,121 58,453 57,685

81,162 81,162 77,937 77,937

60% 60% 147% 148%

15,212 14,562 8,002 7,402

96,374 95,724 85,939 85,339 
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GH¢’000 GH¢’000 GH¢’000 GH¢’000

Loans, overdraft and placements
Finance lease
Investments and securities

5. Interest Income/expenses 

Preference share income represents obligation in respect of redeemable preference shares transferred to Access Bank during the takeover of HFLC. 
However, by the resolution of the Board in December 2010 at the Bank's AGM, this obligation was transferred to the shareholders of HFLC still having 
shares in Access Bank. As a result, the preference shares were derecognised in December 2010 and recognised as part of receivables.
 

6.Commission And Fees

Total shareholder’s fund/ regulatory capital

Total risk weighted assets

Net interest Expenses

Interest expense 
Savings and customer deposits
Other facilities 

An analysis of interest income by sources are as follows:

From lending financial institutions
Non – banking customers
Securities and treasury bills

Total Interest Income    

The
Group

The
Group

2011 2010 2011 2010

The
Bank

The
Bank

10,908 4,164 10,908 4,164
1,797 1,487 1,797 1,482

1,372 3,564 1,372 3,564
6,032 906 6,032 906

20,573 16,258 20,573 16,258

27,977 20,728 27,977 20,728

Commission Income 
Fee Income 

1,010 797 1,010 797

2,112 1,006 2,112 1,006

20,573 16,258 20,573 16,258

6,990 5,845 6,569 5,209

7.Other Operating Income

Exchange Difference

Operating Lease Rental Income

Bond Trading Income 

Preference Share Income

Loss/gain On Disposal Of Property, Plant & Equip.

Other Fees And Charges

4,143 1,119 4,143 1,119

919 781 578 234
1,354 3,289 1,354 3,289

- 631 - 631

102 25 472 (64)
472 - 6,569 -

12,705 5,651 12,705 5,646

15,272 15,077 15,272 15,082

6,912 1,904 6,912 1,904
492 848 492 848

20,573 17,976 20,573 17,976

27,977 20,728 27,977 20,728
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GH¢’000 GH¢’000 GH¢’000 GH¢’000

Loans, overdraft and placements
Finance lease
Investments and securities

6.Commission And Fees

Total shareholder’s fund/ regulatory capital

Total risk weighted assets

Net interest Expenses

Interest expense 
Savings and customer deposits
Other facilities 

An analysis of interest income by sources are as follows:

From lending financial institutions
Non – banking customers
Securities and treasury bills

Total Interest Income    

The
Group

The
Group

2011 2010 2011 2010

The
Bank

The
Bank

10,908 4,164 10,908 4,164
1,797 1,487 1,797 1,482

1,372 3,564 1,372 3,564
6,032 906 6,032 906

20,573 16,258 20,573 16,258

27,977 20,728 27,977 20,728

Commission Income 
Fee Income 

1,010 797 1,010 797

2,112 1,006 2,112 1,006

20,573 16,258 20,573 16,258

6,990 5,845 6,569 5,209

7.Other Operating Income

Exchange Difference

Operating Lease Rental Income

Bond Trading Income 

Preference Share Income

Loss/gain On Disposal Of Property, Plant & Equip.

Other Fees And Charges

4,143 1,119 4,143 1,119

919 781 578 234
1,354 3,289 1,354 3,289

- 631 - 631

102 25 472 (64)
472 - 6,569 -

12,705 5,651 12,705 5,646

15,272 15,077 15,272 15,082

6,912 1,904 6,912 1,904
492 848 492 848

20,573 17,976 20,573 17,976

27,977 20,728 27,977 20,728
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GH¢’000 GH¢’000 GH¢’000 GH¢’000
Severance And Gratuity Allowance

Wages And Salaries

Allowance 

Staff Benefits

8. Personnel Expenses

Severance And Gratuity Allowances Relates To Benefits Paid To Staff Of Horizon Finance And Leasing Company Limited Who Were Retrenched In 2009 

And 2010 As A Result Of The Take-over.

9. Other General And Administrative Expenses Include

10(A). Taxation Expense

10(B). Reconciliation Of Effective Tax Rate

Income Tax Expense In Income Statement

Donation And Gift

Auditor’s Remuneration

Professional Service Fees

Director’s Remuneration

The
Group

The
Group

2011 2010 2011 2010

The
Bank

The
Bank

GH¢’000 GH¢’000 GH¢’000 GH¢’000

The
Group

The
Group

2011 2010 2011 2010

The
Bank

The
Bank

GH¢’000 GH¢’000 GH¢’000 GH¢’000

The
Group

The
Group

2011 2010 2011 2010

The
Bank

The
Bank

68 50 60 50

2 4 2 4

84 84 95 77

264 104 264 104

Net interest Expenses

Current Tax

Current Period Tax Charge

Deferred Tax

Original And Reversal Of Temporary Differences

National Fiscal Stabilisation Levy

Charge For The Period

Income Tax Using The Domestic Tax Rate

Non – Deductible Expenses

Tax Except Income

Tax Incentives 

68 50 60 50

2 4 2 4

84 84 95 77

4,566 3,808 4,550 3,721

13,034 12,303 12,968 12,002

3,258 3,076 3,242 3,000

834 304 834 304

909 1,074 909 1101

(435) (646) (435) (684)

4,566 3,808 4,550 3,721

- 744 - 744
1,951 1,497 1,951 1,497
1,493 1,342 1,493 1,342

481 556 481 556

3,925 4,139 3,925 4,139

Profit Before Tax 
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GH¢’000 GH¢’000 GH¢’000 GH¢’000
Cash On Hand

Balances With Central Bank

Balances Held With Local Banks

Placements With Banks

11. Cash And Cash Equivalents

Included In Cash And Cash Balances Are Amount Of Gh¢14,920,650. (2010: Gh¢8,266,050) Held As Mandatory Reserve With The Bank Of Ghana.

12. Short And Long Term Investments

These Represent Treasury Bill And Government Of Ghana Bonds Held By The Bank.

13. Due To Other Banks Comprise:

Treasury Bills

Government Of Ghana Bonds

The
Group

The
Group

2011 2010 2011 2010

The
Bank

The
Bank

GH¢’000 GH¢’000 GH¢’000 GH¢’000

The
Group

The
Group

2011 2010 2011 2010

The
Bank

The
Bank

GH¢’000 GH¢’000 GH¢’000 GH¢’000

The
Group

The
Group

2011 2010 2011 2010

The
Bank

The
Bank

114,498 123,014 114,498 123,014

148,948 152,970 148,948 152,970

34,450 29,956 34,450 29,956

Items In The Course Of Collection

Deposit From Other Banks

6,349 1,483 6,349 1,483

- 9,924 - 9,924

4,566 11,407 6,349 11,407

3,358 1,446 3,358 1,446
19,719 11,266 19,719 11,266

7,173 3,745 6,304 3,125
8,000 1,024 8,000 1,024

38,250 17,481 37,381 16,861
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Financial Risk Management(cont’d)

GH¢’000 GH¢’000 GH¢’000

Loans and advances

Individuals

Other private enterprise

Joint private and state enterprises

Staff loans  

Finance lease advances

Individuals

Other private enterprises

31 December 2010

Loans and advances

Individuals

Other private enterprise

Joint private and state enterprises

Staff loans

Finance lease advances

Individuals

Other private enterprises

31 December 2011

The Group and the Bank

15(A) Impairment Loss Allowance Account

Impairment loss allowance at the end

14(c) Loans and Advances – Analysis by Customer

The Group and the Bank

Loans

Impairment loss allowance at the beginning

Impairment loss for the period:

Specific allowance for impairment loss

Collective allowance for impairment loss

Gross Loss

Impairment 

Net

GH¢’000 GH¢’000 GH¢’000

Gross Loss
Impairment

Net

GH¢’000 GH¢’000 GH¢’000 GH¢’000

The
Group

The
Group

2011 2010 2011 2010

The
Bank

The
Bank

1,204 542 1,021 542

730 667 730 667

99 (5) 99 (5)

829 662 829 662

2,033 1,204 2,033 1,204

12,609 (302) 12,307
654 (16) 638

495 (11) 484
63,837 (1,527) 62,310

77,596 (1,856) 75,739

54 (7) 47
1,419 (170) 1,249

79,068 (2,033) 77,035

19,415 1,204 18,211

173 2 171

16,071 1,195 14,786
- - -

532) - 532

196 - 196
2,443 7 2,436
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GH¢’000 GH¢’000

15(b) Allowance for impairment 

16.  Off Balance Sheet Commitments 

The Group and the Bank

2,033 1,204

 1,204 542

(11) 484

Net investment in finance leases 

Finance lease receivables

Net investment in finance leases, receivable:

Less than one year

Between one and five years

GH¢’000 GH¢’000 GH¢’000 GH¢’000

The
Group

The
Group

2011 2010 2011 2010

The
Bank

The
Bank

522 575 522 575

950 1,007 950 1,007

1,472 1,582 1,472 1,582

Guarantee 

Letters of credit

Transaction related bonds and guarantees

GH¢’000 GH¢’000 GH¢’000 GH¢’000

The
Group

The
Group

2011 2010 2011 2010

The
Bank

The
Bank

14,150 4,091 14,150 4,091
49,118 10,573 49,118 10,573

974 12,801 974 12,801

64,242 27,465 64,242 27,465

At 31/12/11 At 31/12/10

Specific allowance for impairment loss

Balance at beginning

Impairment loss charge for the period

Balance at close 
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GH¢’000GH¢’000GH¢’000GH¢’000GH¢’000GH¢’000GH¢’000

17. Property, Plant & Equipment

The Group 

 25  226 2,343 454 1,1853,589 7,822

 -  93 1,069 96201140 1,599
-  82 828 125 278167 1,480

-  - (758) (15) (376)- (1,149)

 25 320 3,6364791,3223,985 9,767

 -  94 2,101 82 525 406 3,207
- - (808) (19) (423)- (1,250)

 -  - -38 38- -
 -  - - -(2)(10) (12)

Balance at close

31 December 2011

- 175 1,139206103307 1,930Balance at 31 December 2011

Land &
Building Equipment

Furniture &
Fitting

Motor
Vehicles

Capital
Work -in-
Progress Computers Total

Cost

Balances at beginning

Additions

Disposals

Reclassification

Transfers

Depreciation and Impairment Losses

Accumulated depreciation beginning

Depreciation for the period 

Disposal

 -  134 1,858 2516442,787 5,674

25  145 2,497 2731,2193,678 7,837

25  92 536 203 556802 2,214

-  -(512) - (15)- (527)

25 2261,8824541,1853,589 7,361Balance at close

Carrying amounts

Balance at 31 December 2011

December 31 2010

Cost

Balances at beginning

Additions

Disposals 

- 33374214542 515
- 604947516098 887

- -(375)-(4)- (379)

- 9349396201140 1,023

25 1331,3893589843,449 6,338Balance at 31 December 2010

Depreciation and Impairment Losses

Accumulated depreciation beginning

Depreciation for the period

Disposal

Balance at 31 December 2010

Carrying amounts
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Financial Risk Management(cont’d)

GH¢’000GH¢’000GH¢’000GH¢’000GH¢’000GH¢’000GH¢’000

The Group 

 25  226 1,116 454 1,1853,589 6,595

 -  93292 96201140 822
-  82 640 125 277167 1,291

-  -(501) (15) (376)- (892)

 25 3202,6984791,3223,985 8,829

 -  94 2,101 82 525 406 3,207
- - (519) (19) (423)- ((961)

 -  - -(38) 38- -
 -  - - -(2)(10) (12)

Balance at close

31 December 2011

- 175431206102307 1,222Balance at 31 December 2011

Land &
Building Equipment

Furniture &
Fitting

Motor
Vehicles

Capital
Work -in-
Progress Computers Total

Cost

Balances at beginning

Additions

Disposals

Reclassification

Transfers

Depreciation and Impairment Losses

Accumulated depreciation beginning

Depreciation for the period 

Disposal

 -  134659 2516442,787 4,475

25  145 2,267 2731,2203,678 7,608

25  92 536 203 556802 2,214

-  -(79) - (15)- (94)

25 2261,1164541,1853,589 6,595Balance at close

Carrying amounts

Balance at 31 December 2011

December 31 2010

Cost

Balances at beginning

Additions during the period

Disposals 

- 3351214542 192
- 602597516098 652

- -(18)-(4)- (22)

- 9329296201140 822

25 1338243589843,449 5,773Balance at 31 December 2010

Depreciation and Impairment Losses

Accumulated depreciation beginning

Charge for the period

Disposal

Balance at at close

Carrying amounts

Included in item of property, plant and equipment of the group are motor vehicles under operating leases with net book value 
of GH¢1,816,304 (The Bank: GH¢979,000).
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 1,083527 1,372 94

(1,404)- (1,404)

 (90)- (90)

 -585 585

(1,494)585 (909)

 (1,014) (379) (1,271) (20)

69 148 101 74

 91 173 203 10

22 25 102 (64)

GH¢’000 GH¢’000 GH¢’000 GH¢’000

Profit on disposal of property, plant 
and equipment

Cost of property, plant and equipment  

Accumulated depreciation on PPE

Carrying value at period end

Proceed on disposal

Profit/Loss on disposal

Cost

Opening Balance

Addition 

Total Intangible Assets

Amortization

amortization At January 1

Amortization For Period

Amortization At December 31

Net Book Value  

The Software Relates To The Bank’s Operating Software.

18. Intangible Assets

The
Group

The
Group

2011 2010

2011 2010

848 505

405 343

1,253 848

322 141

301 181

623 322

630 526

19. Capital Commitment

The Group

31 December 2011

2011 2010

The
Bank

The
Bank

GH¢’000 GH¢’000 GH¢’000

Assets Liabilities Net

There Was No Capital Commitment At The Reporting Date And As At 31 December 2010. 

Property And Equipment

Intangible Assets – Software

Others

Net Tax Assets (Liabilities)
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(1,404)- (1,404)

 (90)- (90)

 -585 585

(1,494)585 (909)

GH¢’000 GH¢’000 GH¢’000

GH¢’000 GH¢’000 GH¢’000

Assets Liabilities Net

Opening
Balances

Income
Statement

Close
Balance

The Bank
31 December 2011

Property and Equipment

Intangible assets – software

Others

Movements in temporary differences

Net Tax Assets (Liabilities)

(1,042)(423) (1,465)

 (56)(34) (90)

 585- 585

(513(457) (970)

The Group
31 December 2011

Property and Equipment

Intangible assets – software

Others

Net Tax Assets (Liabilities)

GH¢’000 GH¢’000 GH¢’000

Opening
Balances

Income
Statement

Close
Balance

(1,042)(362) (1,404)

 (56)(34) (90)

 585- 585

(513)(396) (909)

The Bank
31 December 2011

Property and Equipment

Intangible assets – software

Others

Net Tax Assets (Liabilities)

(362)- (362)

 (34)- (34

(396)- (396)

31 December 2011

Property and Equipment

Intangible assets – software

Net Tax Assets (Liabilities)
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 1,302823 1,302 823

 7,1681,326 7,051 1,600

8,470 2,149   8,353 2,423

GH¢’000 GH¢’000 GH¢’000 GH¢’000

Prepaid Expenses

Other Receivables

 4,1412,2314,141 2,231

 --- -

 4,6083,165 4,608 3,165

165,28591,845165,285 91,845

 2,074671 2,074 671

 112,81662,146 112,816 62,146

 40,05620,98140,056 20,981

1,5902,6511,590 2,651

165,28591,845165,285 91,845

165,28591,845165,285 91,845

Individual 

current Account Deposits

Term Deposits

Other Deposits

Corporate Customers 

Term Deposit

Current Account Deposit

Other

Deposit From Banks

Other Sources

23. Other Liabilities

21. Other Assets

22. Deposits From Customers

The
Group

The
Group

2011 2010 2011 2010

The
Bank

The
Bank

 6,3282,6816,328 2,681

 462397 499 377

 1,648 18 1,635 18

8,4383,096   8,462 3,076

GH¢’000 GH¢’000 GH¢’000 GH¢’000

Interest Payable

Accruals And Other Payables

Sundry Creditors

24. Employee Benefits

Defined Contribution Scheme – Social Security And National Insurance Trust Contributions 

Access Bank Ghana Contributes To The Social Security And National Insurance Trust (Ssnit) Pension Scheme Ran By The Government Of Ghana.

The
Group

The
Group

2011 2010 2011 2010

The
Bank

The
Bank
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GH¢’000GH¢’000 GH¢’000

GH¢’000 GH¢’000

GH¢’000

Opening
Balance Payment

Change 
for Period

Closing
Balance

No. of Shares at
December 2011

No. of Shares at
December 2011

Proceeds
2011

Proceeds
2010

3,452(6,392)3,082 142

 601(237)516 880

 3,436(6,392)2,872 (84)

 601(237)

     100,000      100,000

77,937 78,327

- (400)

3,225

81,162 81,162

10

80,487 80,066

516 880

4,053(6,629)3,598 1,022

4,037(6,629)3,388 796

Income Tax

Stabilization Levy

The Bank

Income Tax

National Fiscal Stabilisation Levy

25. Current Tax Liabilities

26. Equity And Reserves

(a) Stated Capital

Authorised (‘000) 

Issued For Cash (‘000) 

Issued

For Cash

Share Issue Expenses

Movements In Shares 

(b) Statutory Reserve

Statutory Reserve Represents Transfer Of 50% Of The Banks Profit For The Period To A Non-distributable Reserve As  Required By The Banking Act 2004 

Section 29(1a) As Amended.

(c) Retained Earnings

This Represents The Residual Of Cumulative Annual Profits That Are Available For Distribution To Shareholders.

(d) Credit Risk Reserve

The Transfer To Credit Risk Reserve Represents The Excess Of Provision For Bad And Doubtful Debt As Per The Bank Of Ghana's Prudential Guidelines Over 

Impairment Loss On Financial Assets.
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839 698

 193 -

 - 442

 4,748 1,712

 706 706

 6,486 3,558

2011Nature Of Transaction 2010

Gh¢’000 Gh¢’000

27. Investment In Subsidiary

Access Bank Plc – Nigeria Cash And Bank Balance

Access Bank Plc – Nigeria Accounts Payable

Access Bank – Gambia Cash And Bank Balance

Access Bank – Uk Cash And Bank Balance

Bth Account Receivable

Investment In Subsidiary Represents Access Bank’s Investments In Bth, A Subsidiary Of Access Bank Which Is In The Business Of Acquiring For Rent/sale 

Residential And Commercial Real Estate Properties.

28. Related Party Transactions

The Bank Is Controlled By Access Bank Plc, A Bank Incorporated In The Federal Republic Of Nigeria Which Owns More Than 90% Shares Of The Bank.

Below Are Access Bank Ghana’s Outstanding Balances With Related Companies:

Amount Receivable From Access Bank-uk Includes Cash Collateral Of Gh¢28,000 (2010: Gh¢77,000)

Financial Risk Management(cont’d)



77,035-77,035 77,035

11,590-11,590 11,590

6,3496,349- 6,349

165,285165,285- 165,285

8,4628,462- 18,462

180,096180,096- 180,096

114,498-114,498 114,498

34,450-34,450 34,450

37,381-37,381 37,381

274,954 -274,954 274,954

Total
Loans &

Receivables

Other
Financial
Liabilities Fair Value

Gh¢’000Gh¢’000Gh¢’000 Gh¢’000

31 Dec 2010
The Group

31 Dec 2011
The Group

31 Dec 2011
The Bank

31 Dec 2010
The Bank

Gh¢’000Gh¢’000Gh¢’000 Gh¢’000

31 December 2011

Cash and cash equivalents

Short Term investments

Long term investments

Loans and advances

Other assets 

Due to other banks

Deposit from customers

Other liabilities

18,211-18,211 18,211

2,249-2,249 2,249

11,40711,407- 11,407

91,84591,845- 91,845

3,0963,096- 3,096

8,4188,4958,468 8,281

80,48780,06680,487 80,066

10gp11gp11gp 10gp
10gp11gp11gp 10gp

106,348106,348- 106,348

123,014-123,014 123,014

29,956-29,956 29,956

16,861-16,861 16,861

190,291-190,291 190,291

31 December 2010

Cash and cash equivalents

Short Term investments

Long term investments

Loans and advances

Other assets 

Due to other banks

Deposit from customers

Other liabilities

30. Earnings Per Share

The Calculation Of Basic And Diluted Earnings Per Share At 31 December 2011 Was Based On The Profit Attributable To Ordinary Shareholders Of The Group 

And Bank Respectively Of Gh¢ 8,468 And Gh¢8,418 (December 2010:  Gh¢8,495 And Gh¢8,281) And A Weighted Average Number Of Ordinary Shares 

Outstanding Of 80,487 (December 2010:80,066) Calculated As Follows:

Net Profit Attributable To Ordinary Shareholders

Weighted Average Number Of Ordinary Shares

At Period 

Basic

Diluted

29. ACCOUNTING CLASSIFICATION AND FAIR VALUES – FINANCIAL ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
The bank is controlled by Access Bank Plc, a bank incorporated in the Federal Republic of Nigeria which owns more than 90% shares of the Bank.
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Overview
Business Review
Governance

Financial Statements
Corporate DirectoryCorporate Directory

Greater Accra Region 

Abeka Lapaz  

Former Bambolino Restaurant 
Accra- Akweteman Road 
Abeka Lapaz, Accra 

T   +233 302 420 070 - 1
FF   +233 30 2420075  

Achimota  

Plot No. 127 
Nsawam Road 
Achimota, Accra  

T   +233 302 419 080 - 3  
F   +233 302 419 085 

Airport 

No. 34 Senchi Street 
Airport Residential Area 
Accra 

T   +233 302 736 086 - 89  

Alajo (Agency) 

Premises of Star Oil Re-fuelling Station 
Alajo, Accra 

TT    +233 541 704 926 
 

Ashaiman  

Plot No ASH/MKT/A/12 
Accra-Ada Road 
Ashaiman  

TT    +233 303 300 124, 303 300 122, 
FF    +233 303 300 102 

Castle Road  

Starlet 91 Road 
Opposite Ohene Djan Stadium 
Osu, Accra 

TT   +233 302 673 300, 302 666 036 
FF   +233 30 2666020 

Darkuman (Agency) 

Darkuman 

T   +233 542 522 583 

East Cantonment  

9, la Tebu Crescent 
Near Burma Camp 
East Cantonments 
Accra 

TT  +233 289 530 150 

IPS  

IPS Premises 
PO Box LG 149 
Legon, Accra  

TT    +233 302 522 196 - 9, 302 522 200 - 1 
FF  

TT  
FF  

  +233 302 522 199  

Kaneshie  

Winneba Road 
Near Pamprom Traffic Light 
Kaneshie, Accra 

 +233 302 662 370 , 302 662 399 
  +233 30 2672351 

 

Kaneshie Post Office  

General Post Office Premises 
Kaneshie 
Accra 

TT   +233 302 247 849, 302 247 764 
FF  

TT   
FF     +233 302247850 

Kantamanto  

Tarzan House 
Kantamanto Market 
Accra 

  +233 302 673 521, 302 673 286  
  +233 302 673 230 

Lashibi  

Plot 95 / 97 
Adjacent UBI Petroleum 
Lashibi, Accra 

TT   +233 302 953 910 

Madina  

Hollywood Shopping Centre 
Accra-Aburi Road 
Madina, Accra 

T   +233 30 2520709, 302 520725 
F   +233 30 2520715 

Nima  

House No. E2/11 
Parcel No. 816 Block 5 
Nima Roundabout 
Nima-, Accra

TT    +233 289 555 654 

Nima (Agency) 

Hse.No. E114/12, 
Near the Nima Overhead 
Nima,Accra 

TT      +233 240 970 034 

North Industrial Area  

Plot No. 23 Block 4 
Dadeban Road 
North Industrial Area, Accra. 

TT   +233 302 247 855, 302 247 944 
FF   +233 30 2238157   

Odorkor (Agency) 

Store No. 9, Hse B 158/11 
Kwashieman Road 
Odorkor, Accra 

TT    +233 240 970 043 

Okaishie  

House No D767/A 
Beach Avenue 
Tudu, Okaishie, Accra 

TT   +233 302 922 996 - 8  

Osu Oxford Street 

41 Cantonments Road 
Next to Osu Food Court 
Oxford Street, Osu 
Accra 

TT  +233 302 774 290 

Osu Watson House  

Watson House 
Osu, La Road 
Accra 

T   +233 302 779 152, 302 779 530 
F   +233 302 784 856 
 

Ring Road Central  

Ring Road Industrial Area North 
Plot No 30A 
Ring Road Central, Accra  

T 

TT  

  +233 302 254 701, 302 254 741 
F   +233 302 254 738  
 

Tema Community 1  

Plot S24, Site 18 
Community 1 
Tema  

T   +233 303 202 934, 303 203 095 
F   +233 303 202 950 

Tema Industrial Area  

On the Premises of TT Brothers 
Off the Tema - Aflao Road 
Tema 

T    +233 289 557 388 

Tema Main  

Off Fishing Harbour Road 
Opposite Maersk 
Tema 

+233 303 202 191, 303 200 082 
FF    +233 303 202 211 

 

Head Office

Access Bank (Ghana) Limited
Starlets ’91 Road
Opposite Accra Sports Stadium, Osu
P.O. Box GP 353
Accra, Ghana

T    +233 (0) 302 684860
E:   info@ghana.accessbankplc.com
W:  www.accessbankplc.com/gh
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Aboabu (Agency) 

Plot 1, Block 3 
Aboabu Station 
South Zongo, Kumasi 

TT   +233 546 959 297 

Adum  

Plot No.14 Block II 
Prempeh II Street 
Adum 
Kumasi 

T  +233 322 083 871 - 7 
F  +233 322 083 870 
 

Asafo  

Plot 278A 
Off Otumfo Osei Tutu II Blvd 
Asafo 
Kumasi 

T   +233 322 195 466 

New Amakom  

Plot No. 5 Block IX 
Near the Anloga Traffic Light  
New Amakom 
Kumasi 

T   +233 322 049 250  - 2
F   +233 322 049 253 
 

Suame  

Offinso - Kumasi Road 
Suame 
Kumasi 

T  +233 322 083 971 - 7 
F   +233 32 2083970 
 

 

 

Central Region  

Western Region

Ashanti Region

 

Enchi  

On the Enchi Main Road 
Adjacent the former Court Building 
Enchi 

T   +233 312 190 381, 312 190 382  

Sefwi Wiawso  

Opposite the Ghana COCOBOD Office 
Sefwi - Mpomamu Road. 
Sefwi Wiawso 

T   
T   

+233 32 192 520 

Takoradi  

House No PT 131 
Liberation Road 
Opposite Bank of Ghana 
Takoradi 

  +233 312 032 424 

Tarkwa  

Plot No.3 
Post Office Road 
Tarkwa 

T   +233 312 322 606, 312 322 619 
F   +233 312 322 593 

 
 

 

Northern Region Brong-Ahafo Region 

Tamale  

No. 2 Bank Street 
Bank of Ghana Road 
Tamale  

T   +233 372 027 212 - 5 , 372 027 127 
F   +233 372 027 120 
 

Techiman  

Plot No 156 
Block J, Sector 1 
Tamale Road 
Techiman 

T   +233 352 522 060, 352 522 062 / 3 
F   +233 352 522 083 
 

Kasoa (Agency) 

Hse. No. KA 108, Bawjiase Junction 
Opposite the Old Police Station 
Kasoa 

T   +233 541 704 927 

Eastern Region  

Koforidua (Agency) 

Shop No. AT 16 A 
Near the round about and Opp. ADB 
Koforidua 

T   +233 546 959 296 
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Ghana Head Office
Access Bank (Ghana) Limited
Starlets ’91 Road
Opposite Accra Sports Stadium, Osu
P.O. Box GP 353
Accra, Ghana
T: 233 (0) 302 684860
E: info@ghana.accessbankplc.com
W: www.accessbankplc.com/gh
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